
 
      

      
 
 
 

SWEETWATER CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
Advanced Meeting Package 

 
Regular Meeting + 

Budget Public Hearing 

 
Thursday 

August 7, 2025 
4:00 p.m. 

 
Location: 

1865 North Loop Parkway,  
St. Augustine, FL 32095 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:  The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all materials are 
considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or adoption. 

 



Sweetwater Creek 
Community Development District 

c/o Vesta District Services 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208 

Lake Mary, FL  32746 
321-263-0132 

  
 

 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Sweetwater Creek Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members, 
 
The Regular Meeting and Budget Public Hearing of the Board of Supervisors of the Sweetwater 
Creek Community Development District is scheduled for Thursday, August 7, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. at 
the 1865 North Loop Parkway, St. Augustine, FL 32095. 
 
An advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 
 
Should you have any questions regarding the agenda, please contact me at (904) 386-0186 or 
Howard@fcsmanagementgroup.com. We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Howard McGaffney 
Howard McGaffney 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
Cc: Attorney  

Engineer 
District Records 

 

https://www.trailscdd.org/contact-form?recipient=6


Page 1 of 2 
 

       
Sweetwater Creek 
Community Development District 
Meeting Date: Thursday, August 7, 2025 
Time: 4:00 PM 
Location: Fitness Center, 1865 N. Loop Pkwy, St. Augustine, FL 32095 

 

Revised Agenda 

I. Roll Call  
II. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for 

agenda items)   
 

III. Presentation of Proof of Publication(s) Exhibit 1 
Pgs. 6-7 

IV. FY 2026 Budget & FY 2026 Assessments Public Hearings  
A. FY 2026 Budget Public Hearing & FY 2026 O&M Assessments 

Public Hearing 
 

1. Open the Public Hearings  
2. Presentation of FY 2025-2026 Budget Exhibit 2 

Pgs. 9-16 
3. Public Comments  
4. Close the Public Hearings  
5. Consideration & Adoption Resolution 2025-12, Adopting 

Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Budget 
Exhibit 3 
Pgs. 18-20 

6. Consideration & Adoption Resolution 2025-13, Annual 
Assessments 

Exhibit 4 
Pgs. 22-34 

V. Consent Agenda  
A. Consideration for Approval – The Minutes of the Board of 

Supervisors Regular Meeting Held on July 10, 2025 
Exhibit 5 
Pgs. 36-45 

B. Consideration for Acceptance – The June 2025 Unaudited 
Financial Statements  

Exhibit 6 
Pgs. 47-63 

C. Consideration for Acceptance – The June & July 2025 Operations 
& Maintenance Expenditures  

Exhibit 7 
Pgs. 65-192 

D. Ratification of Requisition #168 – JD Goals, Inc. - $5,677.50 Exhibit 8 
Pgs. 194-197  

E. Ratification of Vesta District Services District Management & 
Amenity Services Agreement – To Be Distributed 

Exhibit 9 

  



Page 2 of 2 
 

VI. Staff Reports  
A. Landscape Report    
B. District Engineer  
C. District Counsel  

1. Discussion of Amenity Policies  
D. District Manager   

1. Update on CD Violation Notice – SJRWMD   
2. Update on Marshall Creek/Sweetwater Creek 2024 Cost Share 

Agreement 
 

E. General Manager’s Report Exhibit 10 
Pgs. 200-201  

VII. Business Items  
A. Consideration of Vesta Proposed Changes – Employment 

Changes  
Exhibit 11 
Pgs. 203-208  

B. Consideration of McDermitt Audit Services Engagement Letter – 
FY 2025 through FY 2029 

Exhibit 12 
Pgs. 210-215  

C. Consideration & Adoption of Resolution 2025-14, Approving FY 
2025-2026 Meeting Schedule 

Exhibit 13 
Pgs. 217-218  

D. Consideration of Authorization to Close Truist Capital Reserve 
Account 

 

1. Consideration & Adoption Resolution 2025-15, Designating 
Public Depository for Capital Reserve Account – Bank 
United 

Exhibit 14 
Pgs. 220-221  

E. Consideration of AT&T Contract   
F. Presentation of Supervisor Information Form Exhibit 15 

Pg. 223  
VIII. Discussion Topics  

A. Onda Park – Chair Cervelli  
B. Envera – Supervisor Smith  

IX. Supervisors’ Requests  
X. Audience Comments – (limited to 3 minutes per individual for non-

agenda items)   
 

XI. Next Meeting Quorum Check: September 4, 4:00PM 
 

Rob Lisotta  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

John Smith  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Daniel Colin  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Ron Cervelli  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

Stephen Handler  IN PERSON  REMOTE  NO 

 

XII. Adjournment  
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 







  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

GENERAL FUND, OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M)

FY 2025 

ADOPTED

FY 2026 

PROPOSED

VARIANCE 

FY25-FY26

REVENUES

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - TAX ROLL 1,857,822$     1,981,623$     123,801$         

FITNESS CENTER REVENUE 2,000               4,500               2,500               

COST SHARING - MARSHALL CREEK REVENUE -                       -                       -                       

INTEREST/MISCELLANEOUS 25,000             30,000             5,000               

TOTAL REVENUES 1,884,822       2,016,123       131,301           

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

SUPERVISOR FEES 12,000             14,000             2,000               

ENGINEERING FEES 20,000             20,000             -                       

DISTRICT COUNSEL 63,599             65,000             1,401               

ANNUAL AUDIT 3,800               3,800               -                       

ASSESSMENT ROLL 5,200               5,460               260                  

ARBITRAGE 500                  500                  -                       

DISSEMINATION AGENT 5,512               5,788               276                  

TRUSTEE FEES 3,800               4,139               339                  

MANAGEMENT FEES 44,200             46,410             2,210               

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 1,482               1,556               74                    

WEBSITE MAINTENANCE 1,040               1,092               52                    

TELEPHONE 742                  742                  -                       

POSTAGE & DELIVERY 3,000               3,300               300                  

PUBLIC OFFICIAL INSURNACE 5,172               5,400               228                  

COPIES 2,500               4,200               1,700               

LEGAL ADVERTISING 2,000               2,000               -                       

MISCELLANEOUS 1,500               1,500               -                       

DUES, LICENSES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 175                  175                  -                       

COST SHARE EXPENSE - MARSHALL CREEK CDD 100,000           100,000           -                       

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 276,222           285,062           8,840               

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE

UTILITIES - ELECTRIC 78,000             82,500             4,500               

GENERAL INSURANCE/WORKERS COMP 6,884               6,629               (255)                 

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 291,276           300,014           8,738               

LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS 50,000             50,000             -                       

MULCH 50,000             50,000             -                       

LAKE MAINTENANCE 22,000             25,469             3,469               

FOUNTAIN MAINTENANCE 1,500               1,500               -                       

IRRIGATION REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 39,000             50,000             11,000             

STORM CLEAN-UP 10,000             10,000             -                       

FIELD REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 36,000             36,000             -                       

TREE REMOVALS 14,000             14,000             -                       

TREE REPLACEMENTS -                       2,000               2,000               

TREE PRUNING 15,000             17,000             2,000               

STREETLIGHT REPAIRS 2,250               2,250               -                       

SIGNAGE REPAIRS 1,000               1,000               -                       

Page 1 of 8



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

GENERAL FUND, OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M)

FY 2025 

ADOPTED

FY 2026 

PROPOSED

VARIANCE 

FY25-FY26

HOLIDAY DECORATION 5,000               5,000               -                       

MISCELLANEOUS FIELD SUPPLIES 3,500               3,500               -                       

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 625,410           656,862           31,452             

AMENITIES

ADMINISTRATIVE

PROPERTY & CASUALTY INSURANCE 43,218             43,933             715                  

FACILITY MANAGEMENT 266,340           291,523           25,183             

PRERFORMANCE INCENTIVE 10,000             10,000             -                       

INFO TECHNOLOGY -                       1,000               1,000               

LICENSES & PERMITS 770                  770                  -                       

SUBSCRIPTIONS & MEMBERSHIPS 2,040               2,040               -                       

TRAINING -                       500                  500                  

OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,000               2,500               (500)                 

OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,500               2,500               -                       

COMMUNICATION-TELEPHONE/INTERNET/TV 12,000             9,600               (2,400)              

INTERNET/TELEPHONE-GUARD HOUSE 4,500               2,000               (2,500)              

FIELD -                       

FIELD MANAGEMENT FEES 92,602             97,232             4,630               

FACILITY MAINTENANCE-COST SHARE -                       20,000             20,000             

GENERAL UTILITIES 78,000             90,585             12,585             

REFUSE REMOVAL 6,725               9,600               2,875               

SECURITY 41,137             41,857             720                  

JANITORIAL SERVICES 43,467             45,640             2,173               

OPERATING SUPPLIES-SPA&PAPER 4,000               4,000               -                       

OPERATING SUPPLIES-UNIFORMS 500                  500                  -                       

CLEANING SUPPLIES 12,500             10,000             (2,500)              

AMENITY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE & IMPROVEMENTS 22,872             50,000             27,128             

GATE REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 2,500               5,000               2,500               

DOG PARK REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 6,000               6,000               -                       

PARK MULCH 5,000               5,000               -                       

MISCELLANEOUS FIELD SUPPLIES 4,100               2,000               (2,100)              

BUILDINGS REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 30,000             36,000             6,000               

PEST CONTROL 1,800               1,800               -                       

POOL MAINTENANCE-CONTRACT 19,469             20,442             973                  

POOL REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3,000               3,000               -                       

POOL CHEMICALS 30,000             30,000             -                       

SIGNAGE & AMENITY REPAIRS 300                  300                  -                       

SPECIAL EVENTS 2,000               2,000               -                       

PARK REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 10,000             10,000             -                       

PICKLEBALL REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 3,000               3,000               -                       

GUARDHOUSE MAINTENANCE 2,500               2,500               -                       

PLAYGROUND REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 5,000               5,000               -                       

FITNESS -                       

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-OUTSIDE FITNESS 55,515             60,000             4,485               

Page 2 of 8



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

GENERAL FUND, OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M)

FY 2025 

ADOPTED

FY 2026 

PROPOSED

VARIANCE 

FY25-FY26

FITNESS EQUIPMENT REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 7,000               5,000               (2,000)              

FITNESS EQUIPMENT RENTAL 36,635             30,477             (6,158)              

MINIATURE GOLF COURSE MAINTENANCE 500                  500                  -                       

MISCELLANEOUS FITNESS SUPPLIES 6,300               4,000               (2,300)              

CAPITAL OUTLAY - MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 6,400               6,400               -                       

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                       -                       -                       

TOTAL AMENITIES 883,190           974,199           91,009             

RESERVE

CAPITAL RESERVE CONTRIBUTION 100,000           100,000           -                       

TOTAL RESERVE 100,000           100,000           -                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,884,822       2,016,123       131,301           

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. -                      -                      -                       

Page 3 of 8



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND (CRF)

FY 2025 

ADOPTED

FY 2026 

PROPOSED

VARIANCE 

FY25-FY26

REVENUES

CAPITAL RESERVE - TRANSFER IN 100,000$        100,000$        -$                    

INTEREST/MISCELLANEOUS 5,000              10,000            5,000               

CARRY FORWARD -                      

TOTAL REVENUES 105,000          110,000          5,000               

EXPENDITURES

CAPITAL OUTLAY 12,000            -                      (12,000)            

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE 20,000            93,210            73,210             

OTHER CURRENT CHARGES 63,599            600                 (62,999)            

RESERVE CONTRIBUTION 9,401              16,190            6,789               

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 105,000          110,000          5,000               

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. -                      -                      -                      

FUND BALANCE ANALYSIS

FUND BALANCE BEGINNING 486,742          496,143          9,401               

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 9,401              16,190            6,789               

FUND BALANCE ENDING 496,143          512,333          16,190             

Page 4 of 8



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

SERIES 2019A-1 

DEBT SERVICE

SERIES 2019A-2 

DEBT SERVICE

TOTAL DEBT 

SERVICE

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS (MADS) 519,766                    215,200                    734,966                    

TOTAL REVENUE 519,766                    215,200                    734,966                    

EXPENDITURES

INTEREST EXPENSE

5/1/2026 77,766                      41,825                      119,591                    

11/1/2026 73,888                      39,550                      113,438                    

PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT

5/1/2026 365,000                    130,000                    495,000                    

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 516,653                    211,375                    728,028                    

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 3,113                        3,825                        6,938                        

NET DEBT SERVICE 734,965.63$          

COLLECTION COST & EARLY PMT. DISCOUNT 46,912.70$            

GROSS DEBT SERVICE ASSESSMENTS 781,878.32$          

Page 5 of 8



Period Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
Annual Debt 

Service

 Principal 

Balance 

11/2/2024 5,600,000         

11/1/2025 2.125% 77,766              77,766              77,766              5,600,000         

5/1/2026 365,000            2.125% 77,766              442,766            5,235,000         

11/1/2026 2.250% 73,888              73,888              516,653            5,235,000         

5/1/2027 375,000            2.250% 73,888              448,888            4,860,000         

11/1/2027 2.375% 69,669              69,669              518,556            4,860,000         

5/1/2028 385,000            2.375% 69,669              454,669            4,475,000         

11/1/2028 2.500% 65,097              65,097              519,766            4,475,000         

5/1/2029 390,000            2.500% 65,097              455,097            4,085,000         

11/1/2029 2.875% 60,222              60,222              515,319            4,085,000         

5/1/2030 405,000            2.875% 60,222              465,222            3,680,000         

11/1/2030 2.875% 54,400              54,400              519,622            3,680,000         

5/1/2031 415,000            2.875% 54,400              469,400            3,265,000         

11/1/2031 2.875% 48,434              48,434              517,834            3,265,000         

5/1/2032 425,000            2.875% 48,434              473,434            2,840,000         

11/1/2032 2.875% 42,325              42,325              515,759            2,840,000         

5/1/2033 440,000            2.875% 42,325              482,325            2,400,000         

11/1/2033 3.000% 36,000              36,000              518,325            2,400,000         

5/1/2034 450,000            3.000% 36,000              486,000            1,950,000         

11/1/2034 3.000% 29,250              29,250              515,250            1,950,000         

5/1/2035 465,000            3.000% 29,250              494,250            1,485,000         

11/1/2035 3.000% 22,275              22,275              516,525            1,485,000         

5/1/2036 480,000            3.000% 22,275              502,275            1,005,000         

11/1/2036 3.000% 15,075              15,075              517,350            1,005,000         

5/1/2037 495,000            3.000% 15,075              510,075            510,000            

11/1/2037 3.000% 7,650                7,650                517,725            510,000            

5/1/2038 510,000            3.000% 7,650                517,650            -                        

Total 5,600,000$       1,204,100$       6,804,100$       6,286,450$       

Footnote: Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS): 519,766$          

(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.

SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2019A-1 AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Page 6 of 8



Period Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service
Annual Debt 

Service

 Principal 

Balance 

11/2/2024 2,160,000         

11/1/2025 3.5% 41,825              41,825              41,825              2,160,000         

5/1/2026 130,000            3.5% 41,825              171,825            2,030,000         

11/1/2026 3.5% 39,550              39,550              211,375            2,030,000         

5/1/2027 135,000            3.5% 39,550              174,550            1,895,000         

11/1/2027 3.5% 37,188              37,188              211,738            1,895,000         

5/1/2028 140,000            3.5% 37,188              177,188            1,755,000         

11/1/2028 3.5% 34,738              34,738              211,925            1,755,000         

5/1/2029 145,000            3.5% 34,738              179,738            1,610,000         

11/1/2029 4.0% 32,200              32,200              211,938            1,610,000         

5/1/2030 150,000            4.0% 32,200              182,200            1,460,000         

11/1/2030 4.0% 29,200              29,200              211,400            1,460,000         

5/1/2031 160,000            4.0% 29,200              189,200            1,300,000         

11/1/2031 4.0% 26,000              26,000              215,200            1,300,000         

5/1/2032 165,000            4.0% 26,000              191,000            1,135,000         

11/1/2032 4.0% 22,700              22,700              213,700            1,135,000         

5/1/2033 170,000            4.0% 22,700              192,700            965,000            

11/1/2033 4.0% 19,300              19,300              212,000            965,000            

5/1/2034 180,000            4.0% 19,300              199,300            785,000            

11/1/2034 4.0% 15,700              15,700              215,000            785,000            

5/1/2035 185,000            4.0% 15,700              200,700            600,000            

11/1/2035 4.0% 12,000              12,000              212,700            600,000            

5/1/2036 190,000            4.0% 12,000              202,000            410,000            

11/1/2036 4.0% 8,200                8,200                210,200            410,000            

5/1/2037 200,000            4.0% 8,200                208,200            210,000            

11/1/2037 4.0% 4,200                4,200                212,400            210,000            

5/1/2038 210,000            4.0% 4,200                214,200            -                        

Total 2,160,000$       645,600$          2,805,600$       2,591,400$       

Footnote: Maximum Annual Debt Service (MADS): 215,200$          

(a) Data herein for the CDD's budgetary process purposes only.

SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

SERIES 2019A-2 AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE

Page 7 of 8



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 PROPOSED BUDGET

ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M) BUDGET

NET O&M BUDGET $1,981,623.00

COUNTY COLLECTION COSTS (2%) $42,162.19

EARLY PAYMENT DISCOUNT (4%) $84,324.38

GROSS O&M ASSESSMENT $2,108,109.57

UNITS ASSESSED

UNIT TYPE

UP TO 63' LOT 469 1.00 469.00 58.17% $1,226,298.78 $2,614.71

64-73' LOT 166 1.16 192.56 23.88% $503,488.47 $3,033.06

80-88' LOT 42 1.40 58.80 7.29% $153,744.92 $3,660.59

90' LOT 4 1.43 5.72 0.71% $14,956.14 $3,739.03

MARSH (LESS THAN 15K SQ.FT.) 6 1.40 8.40 1.04% $21,963.56 $3,660.59

MARSH (15K-30K SQ.FT.) 35 1.43 50.05 6.21% $130,866.21 $3,739.03

MARSH (30K AND GREATER) 6 1.50 9.00 1.12% $23,532.39 $3,922.06

McCANN LOTS 8 1.59 12.72 1.58% $33,259.11 $4,157.39

736 806.25 100.00% $2,108,109.57

PER UNIT ANNUAL ASSESSMENT
 (2)

VARIANCE

FY25 TO FY26

UNIT TYPE PER UNIT

UP TO 63' LOT $2,614.71 $2,614.71 $2,451.36 $163.35 6.66%

64-73' LOT $3,033.06 $3,033.06 $2,843.57 $189.49 6.66%

80-88' LOT $3,660.59 $3,660.59 $3,431.90 $228.69 6.66%

90' LOT $3,739.03 $3,739.03 $3,505.44 $233.60 6.66%

MARSH (LESS THAN 15K SQ.FT.) $3,660.59 $3,660.59 $3,431.90 $228.69 6.66%

MARSH (15K-30K SQ.FT.) $3,739.03 $3,739.03 $3,505.44 $233.60 6.66%

MARSH (30K AND GREATER) $3,922.06 $3,922.06 $3,677.03 $245.03 6.66%

McCANN LOTS $4,157.39 $4,157.39 $3,897.66 $259.73 6.66%

(1) 
Reflects the total number of lots with Series 2019 debt outstanding.

(2)
Annual debt service assessments per unit adopted in connection with the Series 2019 bond issuances. Annual Debt Service Assessments includes principal, interest, St. Johns County collection costs and early payment discounts.

(3)
Annual assessments that will appear on the November, 2025 St. Johns County property tax bill. Amount shown includes all applicable county collection costs (2%) and early payment discounts (up to 4% if paid early).

ALLOCATION OF O&M ASSESSMENT

O&M

SERIES 

2019 DEBT 

SERVICE
 (1)

ERU FACTOR TOTAL ERU's
% TOTAL 

ERU's
TOTAL O&M

O&M PER 

LOT

TOTAL O&M 

PER LOT

SERIES 

2019 DEBT 

SERVICE
 (2)

TOTAL 

PER UNIT 
(3)

FY 2025 PER 

UNIT
% VARIANCE

PAGE 8 OF 8



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



RESOLUTION 2025-12 
 

THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE 
SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
RELATING TO THE ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS AND ADOPTING 
THE BUDGETS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 
2025, AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2026; AUTHORIZING BUDGET 
AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has, prior to the fifteenth (15th) day in June 2025, 
submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Sweetwater Creek Community 
Development District (“District”) proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year 
beginning October 1, 2025, and ending September 30, 2026 (“Fiscal Year 2026”), along with an 
explanatory and complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at least sixty (60) days prior to the adoption of the Proposed Budget, the 
District filed a copy of the Proposed Budget with the local governing authorities having 
jurisdiction over the area included in the District pursuant to the provisions of Section 
190.008(2)(b), Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board set a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such public 
hearing to be given by publication pursuant to Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two (2) days before the public hearing; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida Statutes, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget for 
the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to defray 
all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall project the cash receipts and disbursements anticipated during a given time period, including 
reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during the fiscal 
year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BUDGET 
 

a.  The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and 
hereby approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 



 
b.  The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit A, as amended by the Board, is 

hereby adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 190.008(2)(a), Florida 
Statutes (“Adopted Budget”), and incorporated herein by reference; provided, 
however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget may be 
subsequently revised as deemed necessary by the District Manager to reflect actual 
revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.  The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the Sweetwater Creek Community Development District for the Fiscal Year 
Ending September 30, 2026.” 

 
d. The Adopted Budget shall be posted by the District Manager on the District’s 

official website within thirty (30) days after adoption, and shall remain on the 
website for at least two (2) years.   

 
 SECTION 2. APPROPRIATIONS 
 
 There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the District, for Fiscal Year 2026, the 
sum of $2,861,089 to be raised by the levy of assessments and/or otherwise, which sum is deemed 
by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the District during said budget year, to 
be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $2,016,123 
 

RESERVE      $110,000 
 
 SERIES 2019A-1 DEBT SERVICE FUND  $519,766 
 
 SERIES 2019A-2 DEBT SERVICE FUND  $215,200 
 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS    $2,861,089 
 

 SECTION 3. BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
 Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2026 or within sixty (60) days following the end of the Fiscal Year 2026 may amend its Adopted 
Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. A line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund may be decreased or 
increased by motion of the Board recorded in the minutes, and approving the 
expenditure, if the total appropriations of the fund do not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may approve an expenditure that would increase 

or decrease a line-item appropriation for expenditures within a fund if the total 



appropriations of the fund do not increase and if either (i) the aggregate change in 
the original appropriation item does not exceed the greater of $15,000 or 15% of 
the original appropriation, or (ii) such expenditure is authorized by separate 
disbursement or spending resolution. 

 
c. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
 The District Manager or Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to the budget under 
paragraph c. above are posted on the District’s website within five (5) days after adoption and 
remain on the website for at least two (2) years.   
 

SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST 2025.  
 
ATTEST:      SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
       By:       
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    
       Its:       
 
 
Exhibit A: Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 



RESOLUTION 2025-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT MAKING A 
DETERMINATION OF BENEFIT AND IMPOSING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026; 
PROVIDING FOR THE COLLECTION AND 
ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; 
CERTIFYING AN ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Creek Community Development District (“District”) is a 
local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
for the purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities and 
services to the lands within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is located in St. Johns County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the District hereby determines to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described in the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025, and ending September 
30, 2026 (“Fiscal Year 2026”), attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference herein; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District must obtain sufficient funds to provide for the operation and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, provides that the District may impose special 
assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments for operations and maintenance in the amount set forth in the Adopted Budget; 
and 

 



WHEREAS, the District has previously levied an assessment for debt service, which the 
District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2026; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special assessments may be placed on the tax roll and collected by the local tax collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to adopt the Assessment Roll of the 
Sweetwater Creek Community Development District (“Assessment Roll”) attached to this 
Resolution as Exhibit B and incorporated as a material part of this Resolution by this reference, 
and to certify the Assessment Roll to the County Tax Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to permit the District Manager to 
amend the Assessment Roll, certified to the County Tax Collector by this Resolution, as the 
Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, for such time as authorized by Florida 
law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SWEETWATER CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and 
determines that the provision of the services, facilities, and operations as described in Exhibit A 
confers a special and peculiar benefit to the lands within the District, which benefit exceeds or 
equals the cost of the assessments. The allocation of the assessments to the specially benefitted 
lands, as shown in Exhibits A and B, is hereby found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
 SECTION 2. ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapters 190 and 197, 
Florida Statutes, and using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of 
special assessments, a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and 
levied on benefitted lands within the District, and in accordance with Exhibits A and B.  The lien 
of the special assessments for operations and maintenance imposed and levied by this Resolution 
shall be effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), 
Florida Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for 
operation and maintenance assessments. 
 
 SECTION 3. COLLECTION.  The collection of the operation and maintenance special 
assessments and previously levied debt service assessments shall be at the same time and in the 
same manner as County taxes in accordance with the Uniform Method, as indicated on 
Exhibits A and B. The decision to collect special assessments by any particular method – e.g., on 
the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such method will be used to collect special 
assessments in future years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select 
collection methods in any given year, regardless of past practices.   



 SECTION 4. ASSESSMENT ROLL.  The Assessment Roll, attached to this Resolution 
as Exhibit B, is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the County 
Tax Collector in the same manner and time as County taxes.  The proceeds therefrom shall be paid 
to the District. 
 
 SECTION 5. ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep 
apprised of all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date 
of this Resolution and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for 
such time as authorized by Florida law, to the County property roll.  After any amendment of the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions 
of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 
 
 SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect upon the passage 
and adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 7TH DAY OF AUGUST 2025. 
 
ATTEST: SWEETWATER CREEK 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
_____________________________ By: ___________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary    
       Its: ____________________________ 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 
Exhibit B:  Assessment Roll 



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072140-0010 17 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0020 35 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0030 55 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0040 79 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0050 97 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0060 100 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0070 82 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 $2,963.01 $262.42 $7,382.82

072140-0080 64 SAN CRISTOBAL McCann $4,157.39 - $262.42 $4,419.81

072143-0010 15 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 $1,636.64 $247.57 $5,806.27

072143-0020 25 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 $1,636.64 $247.57 $5,806.27

072143-0030 35 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0040 53 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0050 85 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0060 107 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0070 119 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0080 129 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 $2,332.58 $231.06 $6,224.23

072143-0090 145 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0100 161 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0110 175 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072143-0120 191 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 $2,332.58 $231.06 $6,224.23

072143-0130 225 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0140 243 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0150 275 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0160 291 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0170 309 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0180 323 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0190 335 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0200 357 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0210 379 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0220 403 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0230 429 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0240 453 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0250 469 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0260 481 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072143-0270 495 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072143-0280 513 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0290 535 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072143-0300 557 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0310 581 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0320 603 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0330 625 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0340 647 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 $2,332.58 $236.01 $6,307.62

072143-0350 669 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0360 689 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0370 705 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0380 717 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - - $3,739.03

072143-0390 723 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 $2,332.58 $247.57 $6,502.21

072143-0400 731 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 $1,636.64 $247.57 $5,806.27

072143-0410 10 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 $1,636.64 $247.57 $5,806.27

072143-0420 84 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 30k+ $3,922.06 - $247.57 $4,169.63

072143-0430 234 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0440 252 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0450 278 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0460 304 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh 15k-30k $3,739.03 - $236.01 $3,975.04

072143-0470 336 RIO DEL NORTE Marsh < 15k $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072151-0010 252 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0020 236 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0030 224 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-0040 208 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0050 198 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0060 192 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0070 184 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0080 178 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0090 172 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0100 166 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-0110 158 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0120 144 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0130 132 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0140 112 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0150 96 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0160 84 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0170 68 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0180 56 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0190 40 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0200 26 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0210 20 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

PAGE 1 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072151-0220 16 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0230 10 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0240 17 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0250 41 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0260 53 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0270 67 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0280 17 DERECHO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0290 31 DERECHO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0300 51 DERECHO 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-0310 63 DERECHO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0320 54 DERECHO 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072151-0330 42 DERECHO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0340 30 DERECHO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0350 16 DERECHO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0360 191 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0370 219 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0380 235 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0390 247 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0400 25 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0410 41 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0420 63 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0430 83 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0440 101 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0450 115 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0460 127 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0470 139 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0480 155 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0490 169 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0500 170 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0510 152 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0520 136 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0530 108 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0540 90 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0550 76 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0560 64 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0570 50 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0580 38 LAZO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0590 24 LAZO 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-0600 303 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0610 315 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0620 331 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0630 343 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0640 359 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0650 375 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0660 389 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0670 403 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0680 417 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0690 431 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0700 445 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0710 457 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0720 469 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0730 491 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0740 511 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0750 527 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0760 541 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0770 557 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0780 583 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0790 611 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0800 639 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0810 655 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0820 671 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0830 689 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0840 45 MITAD 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0850 61 MITAD 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0860 81 MITAD 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0870 89 MITAD 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0880 88 MITAD 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0890 74 MITAD 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0900 58 MITAD 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-0910 46 MITAD 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0920 32 MITAD 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0930 18 MITAD 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0940 310 ENREDE $3,033.06 - - $3,033.06

072151-0950 324 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0960 338 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0970 352 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

PAGE 2 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072151-0980 366 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-0990 382 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1000 400 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1010 412 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1020 428 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1030 442 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1040 468 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1050 486 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1060 498 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1070 512 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1080 526 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1090 544 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1100 556 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1110 568 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072151-1120 580 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1130 592 ENREDE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1140 606 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1150 18 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-1160 30 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1170 44 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1180 56 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1190 74 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-1200 92 SAN NUEVE 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072151-1210 57 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1220 45 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 - - $3,033.06

072151-1230 29 SAN NUEVE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1240 15 SAN NUEVE 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1250 690 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1260 702 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1270 716 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1280 730 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1290 744 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1300 760 ENREDE 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1310 22 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1320 32 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1330 44 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1340 54 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1350 68 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1360 78 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1370 90 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1380 102 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1390 114 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1400 124 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1410 140 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1420 150 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1430 162 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1440 174 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1450 184 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1460 196 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1470 206 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1480 220 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1490 230 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1500 244 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1510 260 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1520 280 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1530 332 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1540 382 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1550 394 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1560 406 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1570 416 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1580 14 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1590 24 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1600 36 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1610 50 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1620 64 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1630 76 PRIVADO 63'S $2,614.71 $1,101.64 $165.05 $3,881.40

072151-1640 77 PRIVADO 63'S $2,614.71 $1,101.64 $165.05 $3,881.40

072151-1650 65 PRIVADO 63'S $2,614.71 $1,101.64 $165.05 $3,881.40

072151-1660 49 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1670 37 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1680 27 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1690 13 PRIVADO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1700 16 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1710 26 TORCIDO 63'S $2,614.71 $1,101.64 $165.05 $3,881.40

072151-1720 42 TORCIDO 73'S $3,033.06 $1,443.50 $191.45 $4,668.01

072151-1730 60 TORCIDO 73'S $3,033.06 $1,443.50 $191.45 $4,668.01

PAGE 3 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072151-1740 80 TORCIDO 73'S $3,033.06 $1,443.50 $191.45 $4,668.01

072151-1750 98 TORCIDO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1760 112 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1770 122 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1780 132 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1790 140 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1800 150 TORCIDO 73'S $3,033.06 $1,443.50 $191.45 $4,668.01

072151-1810 160 TORCIDO 63'S $2,614.71 $1,101.64 $165.05 $3,881.40

072151-1820 174 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1830 188 TORCIDO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1840 204 TORCIDO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1850 535 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1860 523 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1870 513 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1880 499 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1890 483 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1900 465 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1910 449 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1920 431 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1930 415 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1940 399 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1950 383 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1960 369 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1970 357 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-1980 345 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-1990 321 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2000 305 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2010 291 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2020 279 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2030 267 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2040 255 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2050 245 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2060 233 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2070 221 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2080 209 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2090 197 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072151-2100 181 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2110 163 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2120 145 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2130 119 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2140 99 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2150 81 MEDIO 73' $3,033.06 $1,015.15 $191.45 $4,239.66

072151-2160 67 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2170 55 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2180 45 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2190 33 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2200 21 MEDIO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2210 20 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2220 30 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2230 44 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2240 52 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2250 62 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2260 78 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2270 88 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2280 98 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2290 108 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2300 118 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2310 130 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2320 150 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2330 168 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2340 178 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2350 190 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072151-2360 202 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2370 214 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2380 228 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2390 238 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2400 248 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2410 258 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2420 270 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2430 278 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2440 290 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072151-2450 300 RINCON 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072152-0010 31 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 - - $3,660.59

072152-0020 43 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0030 55 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0040 63 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

PAGE 4 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072152-0050 71 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0060 89 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0070 97 OVALO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0080 34 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0090 44 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0100 52 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0110 68 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0120 82 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0130 98 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0140 114 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0150 128 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0160 136 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0170 150 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0180 153 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0190 143 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0200 135 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0210 117 CODO 80' $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072152-0220 79 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0230 65 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0240 45 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0250 27 CODO 80' $3,660.59 $1,055.31 $231.06 $4,946.96

072152-0260 73 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0270 87 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0280 95 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0290 101 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0300 109 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0310 121 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0320 129 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0330 141 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0340 153 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0350 161 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0360 177 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0370 187 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0380 195 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0390 207 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0400 215 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0410 223 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0420 231 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0430 241 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0440 251 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0450 261 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0460 277 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0470 289 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0480 297 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0490 305 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0500 311 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-0510 25 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0520 41 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0530 101 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0540 111 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0550 121 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0560 127 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072152-0570 143 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0580 149 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0590 159 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0600 171 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 - $231.06 $3,891.65

072152-0610 185 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0620 201 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0630 207 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0640 215 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0650 229 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0660 239 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0670 60 BARBELLA 80'C $3,660.59 $1,214.28 $231.06 $5,105.93

072152-0680 21 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0690 29 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072152-0700 35 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0710 43 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0720 49 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0730 59 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0740 67 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0750 73 CALLE DE PAZ 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0760 13 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0770 23 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0780 35 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0790 45 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0800 55 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

PAGE 5 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072152-0810 67 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0820 64 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0830 38 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0840 22 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0850 10 PANTANO VISTA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0860 2455 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0870 2465 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0880 2477 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0890 2489 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0900 2501 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0910 2511 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0920 2521 LAS CALINAS $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072152-0930 2531 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0940 2543 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0950 2557 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0960 2571 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0970 2585 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0980 2599 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-0990 2617 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1000 2633 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1010 2645 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1020 2648 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1030 2638 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1040 2628 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1050 2618 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1060 67 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1070 79 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1080 89 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1090 100 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1100 92 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1110 84 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1120 80 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1130 70 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1140 60 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1150 50 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1160 42 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1170 34 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1180 24 ONDA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1190 2574 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1200 2566 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1210 2556 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1220 2546 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1230 2538 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072152-1240 2528 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1250 2518 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1260 2508 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1270 2498 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1280 2486 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1290 2474 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1300 2462 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1310 2446 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1320 2426 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1330 2408 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1340 2391 LAS CALINAS 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1350 25 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1360 51 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1370 59 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1380 69 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1390 79 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1400 89 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1410 99 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1420 109 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1430 117 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1440 120 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1450 114 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1460 110 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1470 100 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1480 90 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1490 80 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1500 70 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1510 58 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1520 48 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1530 40 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1540 32 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1550 22 CEJA 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072152-1560 319 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

PAGE 6 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072152-1570 286 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-1580 272 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-1590 266 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-1600 250 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072152-1610 234 DOSEL 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1560 27 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-1570 39 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1580 49 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-1590 59 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1600 69 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1610 77 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1620 87 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1630 97 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1640 107 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1650 117 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1660 127 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1670 137 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1680 175 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1690 189 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1700 199 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1710 209 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1720 221 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1730 233 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1740 245 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1750 259 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-1760 271 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1770 283 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-1780 293 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1790 303 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-1800 315 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1810 329 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1820 339 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1830 351 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1840 365 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1850 421 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1860 435 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1870 449 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1880 463 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-1890 479 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1900 493 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1910 505 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1920 517 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-1930 531 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1940 543 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1950 559 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1960 581 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-1970 601 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1980 617 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-1990 33 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2000 49 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2010 63 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2020 81 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2030 101 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2040 119 BRASILLA 90'C $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072153-2050 127 BRASILLA 90'C $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072153-2060 126 BRASILLA 90'C $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072153-2070 118 BRASILLA 90'C $3,739.03 $1,636.64 $236.01 $5,611.68

072153-2080 106 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2090 94 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2100 78 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2110 62 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2120 44 BRASILLA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2130 782 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2140 762 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2150 748 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2160 732 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2170 720 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2180 710 GLORIETA 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-2190 652 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2200 640 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2210 628 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2220 612 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2230 602 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2240 592 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2250 582 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2260 570 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

PAGE 7 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072153-2270 560 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2280 550 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2290 538 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2300 524 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2310 510 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-2320 494 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2330 484 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2340 472 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2350 462 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2360 450 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2370 438 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2380 426 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2390 414 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2400 398 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2410 386 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2420 374 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2430 364 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2440 346 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2450 328 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072153-2460 310 GLORIETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072153-2470 298 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2480 288 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2490 278 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2500 268 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2510 258 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2520 248 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2530 238 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2540 228 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2550 218 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2560 210 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-2570 198 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2580 188 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2590 178 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2600 166 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2610 152 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-2620 140 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-2630 126 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2640 112 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2650 100 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-2660 86 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2670 72 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2680 60 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2690 46 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-2700 28 GLORIETA 53'C $2,614.71 $910.92 $138.64 $3,664.27

072153-2750 2659 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2760 2671 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2770 2683 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2780 2695 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2790 2707 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-2800 2719 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2810 2729 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-2820 2741 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2830 2753 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-2840 2765 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2850 2775 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2860 2785 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2870 25 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2880 37 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2890 49 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2900 59 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2910 67 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-2920 77 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2930 89 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2940 101 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2950 113 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2960 125 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2970 137 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2980 149 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-2990 161 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3000 173 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3010 189 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3020 194 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3030 188 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3040 176 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3050 168 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3060 156 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

PAGE 8 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072153-3070 144 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3080 132 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3090 120 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3100 108 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3110 96 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3120 84 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3130 60 SAN TELMO 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3140 2835 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3150 2851 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3160 2869 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3170 2883 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3180 2895 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3190 2907 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3200 2919 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3210 2931 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3220 2943 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3230 2955 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3240 2967 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3250 2979 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3260 2987 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3270 27 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3280 43 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 - $191.45 $3,224.51

072153-3290 59 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3300 79 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3310 95 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3320 109 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3330 125 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3340 141 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3350 155 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3360 165 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3370 173 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3380 177 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3390 178 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3400 170 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3410 162 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3420 142 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3430 116 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3440 92 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3450 74 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3460 60 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3470 40 ANTOLIN 73'C $3,033.06 $1,168.19 $191.45 $4,392.70

072153-3490 3038 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3500 3024 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3510 2996 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3520 2972 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3530 2960 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3540 2948 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3550 2936 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3560 2924 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3570 2912 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3580 2900 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3590 2888 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3600 2876 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3610 2864 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3620 2852 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3630 2840 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3640 2828 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3650 2814 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3660 2802 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3670 2790 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3680 2774 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3690 2754 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 - $165.05 $2,779.76

072153-3700 2734 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3710 2714 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3720 2702 LAS CALINAS 63' $2,614.71 $954.05 $165.05 $3,733.81

072153-3730 45 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3740 51 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-3750 63 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3760 73 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3770 103 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3780 113 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3790 121 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3800 137 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3810 147 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3820 157 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3830 167 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

PAGE 9 OF 10



SWEETWATER CREEK CDD

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 ASSESSMENT ROLL

PARCEL ID SITE ST # SITE STREET PRODUCT TYPE FY26 O&M 2019A-1 DS 2019A-2 DS TOTAL ASMT

072153-3840 177 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3850 189 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3860 197 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3870 207 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3880 215 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3890 225 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-3900 237 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3910 249 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3920 252 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-3930 246 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3940 234 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-3950 222 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3960 210 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3970 200 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-3980 188 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-3990 178 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4000 170 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4010 160 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4020 150 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4030 140 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4040 130 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 - $138.64 $2,753.35

072153-4050 124 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4060 112 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4070 70 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4080 58 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072153-4090 36 OTERO 53' $2,614.71 $791.70 $138.64 $3,545.05

072154-2710 43 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2720 55 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2730 65 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2740 75 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2750 85 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2760 101 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2770 119 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2780 131 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2790 143 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2800 157 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2810 169 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2820 181 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2830 195 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2840 205 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2850 213 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2860 219 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072154-2870 221 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2880 192 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2890 180 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2900 166 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2910 152 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2920 138 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 - - $2,614.71

072154-2930 126 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2940 114 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2950 102 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

072154-2960 90 OLETA 63'C $2,614.71 $1,097.80 $165.05 $3,877.56

PAGE 10 OF 10



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 



MINUTES OF MEETING 
SWEETWATER CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Sweetwater Creek Community 

Development District was held on Thursday, July 10, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at the Fitness Center, 

1865 N. Loop Parkway, St. Augustine, Florida.  

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 

Ron Cervelli Chairman 
John Smith Vice Chairman 
Rob Lisotta Supervisor 
Dan Colin Supervisor 
Stephen Handler  Supervisor 

  
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver  District Manager, GMS 
 Mike Silverstein by Zoom District Engineer, Matthews DCCM 
 Mary Grace Henley District Counsel, KVW 
 Meredith Hammock by Zoom District Counsel, KVW 
 Erin Gunia Director of Amenities, RMS 
 Rich Gray Director of Operations, RMS 
 Howard McGaffney FCS Management Group 
 Michael Woolridge Duval Landscape 
 
 
 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the July 10, 2025 
Sweetwater Creek Community Development District’s Regular Board of Supervisors meeting.  
 
 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Cervelli called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. Five Board members were physically 

present, constituting a quorum. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment 
 There being no comments, the next item followed. 

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Consent Agenda 
A. Minutes 

1. May 1, 2025 Meeting 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

2 

2. June 5, 2025 Meeting 
Copies of the minutes were included in the agenda package for the Board’s review.  

Mr. Smith provided two corrections, which will be included in the final version. 

 
B. Financial Statements 
Copies of the financial statements were provided to the Board for their review. 

 

C. Check Registers 
1. May 
2. June 

Copies of the check registers was included in the agenda package for the Board’s review. 

 

D. Ratification of Requisition Nos. 161-167 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Colin, with all in 
favor, the consent agenda was approved with the minutes as revised 
5-0. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Staff Reports 

A. Landscape Team – Maintenance Report 
 Mr. Woolridge reported that there is an issue with the pump at the back entrance of the 

neighborhood that he is investigating. 

 

B. District Engineer 

1. Consideration of Proposal for an As-Built Survey of the Rincon Property 
Line Swales 

2. Consideration of Proposal for a Partial Drainage Assessment Regarding 
Pond Perimeters, Control Structures, and Outfalls 

3. Consideration of Proposal for a Full Drainage Assessment and Report for 
Rincon Drive 

 Mr. Silverstein provided an overview of the three proposals. The first proposal is to create 

a topographic survey of 202 Rincon Drive due to ongoing issues to either prove or disprove that 

the property is graded properly and whether the modifications to the nearby backyard have caused 

the drainage issues. Mr. Smith stated he believes the homeowner has incurred this problem and he 

does not want to spend any more money at this time unless the homeowner wants to get a survey 

done to prove that he is in compliance with the original swale on the original survey.  



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

3 

 The Board’s consensus was that all three proposals are unnecessary at this point. This 

matter was tabled. 

 

C. District Counsel  

 Ms. Henley reported that her office has had individual conversations with each board 

member regarding a resident’s monetary demand and assessment challenge. It was her 

understanding that each of the supervisors were not interested in accepting that demand and 

confirmed her office will not respond to or accept the demand 

 Next, she reported that the District Engineer has advised the PUD modification will be 

filed with the county this week and the project is still within budget. 

 

D. District Manager 
1. Update on Cost Share True-Up 

 Mr. Oliver stated Marshall Creek is awaiting their fiscal year 2024 audit so that they can 

verify certain numbers related to the cost share. Once GMS receives the feedback from Marshall 

Creek, the District Manager will verify their numbers.  

 

2. Financial Update 

 Mr. Oliver reported that the capital reserve balance is at $513,000. There is $1,112,000 in 

the unassigned fund, which are the assessments that have been received from the tax collector. A 

minimum of $149,000 could be transferred to capital reserves. 

 

E. Field Manager – Report 

 A copy of the field operations report was included in the agenda package for the Board’s 

review.  

 

F. Director of Amenities 

1. Report 

A copy of the amenities report was included in the agenda package for the Board’s review. 

Ms. Gunia also reported that due to the depth of the footers for the shade structures at La Palma, 

some of the mulch needs to be replaced. Next, Ms. Gunia presented an estimate for lighting at the 

roundabout totaling $7,735. 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

4 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, installing lighting at the roundabout for a total of $7,735 was 
approved 5-0. 

 

  Lastly, Ms. Gunia informed the Board that an Antolin Way resident has requested access 

use of a CDD easement to construct a pool. Ms. Henley noted an agreement could be drafted for 

use of the District’s property to complete the project. There were no objections from the Board. 

 Mr. Lisotta asked the Board to consider approving a quote from Duval Landscape in which 

the cost of sod would be split between Duval and the District for a total of $4,350. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, the proposal from Duval Landscape totaling $4,350 to replace 
dead sod was approved 5-0. 

 

 Estimates for adding turf to the pool area, Ensenada dog park, round-a-bout, and Privado 

Park were provided to the board. Mr. Lisotta recommending adding turf to Privado Park and the 

Ensenada dog park using money from the remaining bond funds. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, adding  turf to Privado Park to be installed by SportzTurf at 
an amount not to exceed $60,000 was approved 5-0. 

 

2. Roof Quotes 

 No discussion was had on this item. 

 

3. Proposal for Golf Cart Parking 

 No discussion was had on this item. 

 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Ratification of the Engagement Letter with  
   McDirmit Davis for the Fiscal Year 2024  
   Audit 
 A copy of the engagement letter was included in the agenda package for the Board’s 

review. Mr. Oliver noted the audit fee for fiscal year 2024 was $3,800 as budgeted. 

 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Mr. Cervelli, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, the engagement letter with McDirmit Davis for fiscal year 
2024 audit services was ratified 5-0. 

 

 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2024 Audit 
 Mr. Oliver presented the audit report, noting there were no deficiencies in internal control 

or material weaknesses to report. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Cervelli, with all in 
favor, the fiscal year 2024 audit report was accepted 5-0. 

 
 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of the Fiscal Year 2026 Budget 
 Mr. Oliver noted the budget included in the agenda package does not reflect the results of 

the recent request for proposals for management services. He also stated that the mailed notices to 

the homeowners were sent on Friday. There being no further changes to the budget requested, the 

next item followed. 

 
EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion and Decision Regarding a District  
   Operational Vehicle / UTV / Trailer / Pressure  
   Washer 
 Mr. Cervelli stated that only one vehicle is needed as the janitorial and field staff work 

different shifts. Ms. Gunia recommended a truck instead of a golf cart. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colin, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, purchasing a Ford F-150 was approved 5-0. 

 

 Next, the Board discussed purchasing a pressure washer and trailer for a total of $9,000. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colin, seconded by Mr. Handler, with four in 
favor and Mr. Lisotta opposed, purchasing a pressure washer and 
trailer was approved 4-1. 

 

 Next, the Board discussed what to use the remaining bond funds for, including a bocce ball 

court with artificial turf, and adding artificial turf to the Ensenada dog park. 

 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

6 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, artificial turf for the Ensenada dog park at amount not to 
exceed $50,000 to be installed by SportzTurf was approved 5-0. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Colin, with all in 
favor, artificial turf and other elements for the bocce ball court for a 
total of $32,000 was approved 5-0. 

 

 The board took a brief recess at this time. Upon reconvening, the following discussions 

and actions were taken.  

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Gate Security and Response;  
   Consideration of Form Letters to Residents  
   and Nonresidents for Property Damage 
 Ms. Henley stated that this item came up because there was a discussion about how to 

handle when people strike the gates specifically, but also when people damage any District 

property. The letters enclosed in the agenda package are warning letters for first offenses. Repeated 

offenses would be brought to the Board for any further actions needed. Mr.  Colin stated that the 

form letter as presented is fine for accidental damage, but if for intentional damage, there should 

be an automatic $250 fine, plus cost of damages. Ms. Henley stated that CDDs do not have the 

authority to fine, however the offender can be charged for administrative reimbursement and 

property damage reimbursement in the amount of any repairs needed. Ms. Hammock added that 

CDDs are not authorized to issue fines under Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Colin, with all in 
favor, the form letters to residents and nonresidents for property 
damage were approved in substantial form 5-0. 

 
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2025-05,  
   Classifying Surplus Tangible Property and  
   Authorizing Disposition 
 Ms. Henley stated that the purpose of this resolution is to declare the old stair climber as 

surplus property, as required by Florida Statutes. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Lisotta, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2025-05, classifying the old stair climber as 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

7 

surplus tangible property with a value less than $5,000 and 
authorizing its disposal was approved 5-0. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Amenity Policy Changes,  
   Resolution 2025-06 
 The redline policies showing the changes being proposed to the current policies were 

included in the agenda package for the Board’s review. 

 Mr. Lisotta questioned the prohibition of swim lessons and the requirement to coordinate 

the lessons with the Director of Amenities as it puts the staff member in a precarious position. He 

suggested prohibiting swim lessons altogether. 

 Ms. Henley stated that she would make that change. Mr. Lisotta asked Ms. Gunia to 

communicate the change in policy to the residents. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Colin, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2025-06, amending the amenity policies, was 
approved as revised 5-0. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Swim Lessons 
 This topic was covered under item XI. 
 
THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Swim Team License  
   Agreement 
 Ms. Henley informed the Board that the swim team does not currently have a license 

agreement in place. The agreement does not change how the swim team is operating, it just 

memorializes the use of the facility in writing and allows the Board to review and approve the 

terms  on the record. She noted the team pays the District $150 per non-resident team member and 

they are not allowed to have more than 25% of the roster be non-residents. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colin, seconded by Mr. Handler, with all in 
favor, the license agreement with the swim team was approved 5-0. 

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolution 2025-07,  
   Designating Officers 
 Ms. Henley stated that the purpose of this resolution is to re-designate the officers with 

Supervisor Smith having stepped down as the Vice Chair at the last meeting. 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

8 

 Mr. Smith indicated he was in favor of keeping his position as Vice Chair. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colin, seconded by Mr. Handler, with all in 
favor, Resolution 2025-07, designating officers with the slate to 
remain the same was approved 5-0. 

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Resolutions Relating to  
   Transition of District Management Firm 

A. Resolution 2025-08, Appointing and Removing Officers as of July 29th 

 Ms. Henley stated that the purpose of this resolution is to add Vesta and FCS staff as 

Secretary and Treasurer to allow them to sign resolutions and other documents, and issue payment 

to vendors. 

 

B. Resolution 2025-09, Designating Signatories of the Bank Accounts as of July 29th 

 Ms. Henley stated that the employees being designated as officers, are also being 

designated as bank account signatories to enable them to issue payments. 

 

C. Resolution 2025-10, Designating the Primary Administrative Office and Principal 
Headquarters of the District; Designating the Local District Records Office 

 Ms. Henley stated by law, the District has to have all of these things on file. Typically, the 

administrative office and principal headquarters is the management office and the local records 

office will be the fitness center. 

 

D. Resolution 2025-11, Designating the Dissemination Agent 

 Ms. Henley stated that the dissemination agent is a requirement of the bond documents.  

  

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Colin, with all in 
favor, Resolutions 2025-08 through 2025-11 were approved as 
presented 5-0. 

 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSIENSS Discussion of Full-Time vs. Part-Time  
   Maintenance Technician / CPO 
 Mr. Cervelli stated that the Board needs to determine whether they would like to go from 

three days per week of maintenance to 40 hours per week of maintenance. He asked if the Board 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

9 

wanted to change to 32 hours for some weeks if that would be allowable under the contract. Mr. 

McGaffney stated that the District will only be billed for the hours the staff member works. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colin, seconded by Mr. Handler, with all in 
favor, increasing the maintenance technician / CPO’s hours to 40 
per week was approved 5-0. 

 

SEVENTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Scheduling a Workshop in July 

 Mr. Cervelli stated that there are still some financial matters that need to be discussed, 

which would be the purpose of the workshop. If there is a consensus at the workshop, a motion to 

approve the matters can be taken at the August meeting. 

 The workshop was scheduled for July 24, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

EIGHTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the Audit Committee’s  

   Recommendation 

 Mr. Oliver reminded the Board that the audit committee met earlier and selected McDirmit 

Davis as the auditor. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Lisotta, seconded by Mr. Smith, with all in 
favor, accepting the audit committee’s recommendation to select 
McDirmit Davis as the audit firm was approved 5-0. 

 

 NINETEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of AT&T Contract and Conversion  
   from Comcast for Palencia 
 Mr. Smith informed the Board that he has been working with Marshall Creek to transfer 

all services currently under contract with Comcast, to AT&T under a three-year contract for $2,500 

per month. Ms. Henley added that currently Marshall Creek will hold the contract with AT&T and 

Sweetwater will not be a party under the contract. She recommended authorizing District Counsel 

and Supervisor Smith to work with Marshall Creek’s counsel on a cost share agreement or 

memorandum of understanding, something in writing that will protect the District in the event the 

AT&T agreement with Marshall Creek is terminated. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Smith, seconded by Mr. Lisotta, with all in 
favor, authorizing District Counsel and Supervisor Smith to work 



July 10, 2025  Sweetwater Creek CDD 

10 

with Marshall Creek’s counsel on the transition to AT&T was 
approved 5-0. 

 

TWENTIETH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business  
Mr. Lisotta asked what the status is on the PUD modification for Tract K. 

Ms. Henley responded that the District Engineer has all of the paperwork prepared to 

submit to the county and they are planning on doing that this week. She also clarified that in 

February the District Engineer submitted a proposal for walking the District through the PUD 

modification process and there was a motion with four in favor to proceed with the proposal. 

Mr. Cervelli stated that he will not be making a decision until he has information to look 

at. He recommended waiting until the county makes their decision before the Board reviews further 

information and decides how to proceed with the PUD modification. 

 
TWENTY-FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests / Public Comment  

There being none, the next item followed. 

 

TWENTY-SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meetings – Thursday, 
August 7, 2025 at 4:00 p.m. at the Fitness 
Center, 1865 N. Loop Parkway, St. 
Augustine, Florida 32095 

 

TWENTY-THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

 The meeting was adjourned at approximately 5:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
______________________________ _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
June	30,	2025



1

2-3

4

5

6

7-9

10

11

12-14

Month	to	Month

Long	Term	Debt	Summary

Assessment	Receipt	Schedule

Construction	Schedule

Table	of	Contents

Balance	Sheet

General	Fund	Income	Statement

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2019	Income	Statement

Capital	Reserve	Fund	Income	Statement

Capital	Projects	Income	Statement



General	 Debt	Service	 Capital	Reserve Capital	Project Totals
Fund Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets:
Cash:
Operating	Account	General	Fund 225,797$		 			 -$		 	 133,986$	 			 -	 359,783$	 				
Operating	Account	Amenity	Account 19,794	 -	 -	 -	 19,794	
Debit	Card	Account 1,650	 -	 -	 -	 1,650	

Accounts	Receivable -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Assessments	Receivable -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	from	General	Fund -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	from	Others 5,316	 -	 -	 -	 5,316	
Due	from	Amenity -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	from	Debt	Service -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	from	Capital	Reserve -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	from	Capital	Projects 1,082	 -	 -	 -	 1,082	

-	
Investments: -	
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) 550,757	 -	 379,514	 -	 930,272	
US	Bank	Custody	Account 257,146	 -	 -	 -	 257,146	

-	
Series	2019 -	
Reserve	-	A-1 -	 133,070	 -	 -	 133,070	
Reserve	-	A-2 -	 107,700	 -	 -	 107,700	
Revenue -	 191,335	 -	 -	 191,335	
Prepayment -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Excess	Revenue -	 0	 0	
Construction -	 -	 153,121	 153,121	

Prepaid	Expenses -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Deposits -	 -	 -	 -	 -	

Total	Assets 1,061,543$		 			 432,104$		 			 513,501$		 			 153,121$		 			 2,160,269$		 			

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 18,016$		 		 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 18,016$	 				
Accrued	Expenses -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Contracts	Payable -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	to	Debt	Service -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	to	Amenity	Fund 3,000	 -	 -	 -	 3,000	
Due	to	Capital	Reserve -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Due	to	General	Fund -	 -	 -	 -	 -	

Total	Liabilites 21,016$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 21,016$	 			

Fund	Balance:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid	Items -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 				

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	 -	 432,104	 -	 -	 432,104	
Capital	Project -	 -	 -	 153,121	 153,121	

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserve	Fund -	 -	 513,501	 -	 513,501	

Unassigned 1,040,527	 -	 -	 -	 1,040,527	

Total	Fund	Balances 1,040,527$		 			 432,104$		 			 513,501$		 			 153,121$		 			 2,139,253$		 			

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 1,061,543$		 			 432,104$		 			 513,501$		 			 153,121$		 			 2,160,269$		 				

Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
June	30,	2025

1



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	June	30,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	06/30/25 Thru	06/30/25 Variance

Revenues:

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 1,857,822$		 			 1,857,822$		 			 1,846,749$		 			 (11,073)$		 			
Fitness	Center	Revenue 2,000	 2,000	 4,680	 2,680	
Interest/Miscellaneous 25,000	 18,750	 30,005	 11,255	
Insurance	Proceeds -	 -	 1,820	 1,820	

Total		Revenues 1,884,822$										 1,878,572$		 			 1,883,254$		 			 4,682$		 			

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 12,000$		 			 11,200$		 			 11,200$		 			 -	
Engineering 20,000	 15,000	 18,149	 (3,149)	
District	Counsel 63,599	 47,699	 55,151	 (7,451)	
Annual	Audit 3,800	 3,800	 3,800	 -	
Assessment	Administration 5,200	 5,200	 5,200	 -	
Arbitrage	Rebate 500	 -	 -	 -	
Dissemination	Agent 5,512	 4,134	 4,134	 -	
Trustee	Fees 3,800	 3,800	 3,143	 657	
Management	Fees 44,200	 33,150	 33,150	 -	
Information	Technology 1,482	 1,112	 1,112	 -	
Website	Maintenance 1,040	 780	 780	 -	
Telephone 742	 557	 349	 208	
Postage	&	Delivery 3,000	 2,250	 2,852	 (602)	
Public	Official	Insurance 5,172	 5,172	 5,224	 (52)	
Copies 2,500	 1,875	 2,918	 (1,043)	
Legal	Advertising 2,000	 1,500	 655	 845	
Miscellaneous 1,500	 627	 627	 -	
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175	 175	 175	 -	
Cost	Share	Expense	-	Marshall	Creek 100,000																 -	 -	 -	

Total	General	&	Administrative 276,222$		 			 138,031$		 			 148,617$		 			 (10,587)$		 			

Operations	&	Maintenance
Electric 78,000$		 			 58,500$		 			 51,320$		 			 7,180	
General	Insurance 6,884	 6,884	 5,892	 992	
Landscape	Maintenance 291,276																 218,457																 194,184	 24,273	
Landscape	Improvements 50,000	 21,848	 21,848	 -	
Mulch 50,000	 20,000	 20,000	 -	
Lake	Maintenance 22,000	 16,500	 16,980	 (480)	
Fountain	Maintenance 1,500	 1,125	 -	 1,125	
Irrigation	Repairs	&	Maintenance 39,000	 29,150	 29,150	 -	
Storm	Clean-Up 10,000	 -	 -	 -	
Field	Repairs	&	Maintenance 36,000	 28,751	 28,751	 -	
Tree	Removals 14,000	 10,500	 6,650	 3,850	
Tree	Replacements -	 -	 1,820	 (1,820)	
Tree	Pruning 15,000	 11,250	 5,480	 5,770	
Streetlight	Repairs 2,250	 1,688	 -	 1,688	
Signage	Repairs 1,000	 1,000	 1,456	 (456)	
Holiday	Decoration	 5,000	 3,616	 3,616	 -	
Miscellaneous	Field	Supplies 3,500	 2,625	 68	 2,557	

Subtotal	Operations	&	Maintenance 625,410$		 			 431,893$		 			 387,214$		 			 44,679$		 			

Sweetwater	Creek

2



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	June	30,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	06/30/25 Thru	06/30/25 Variance

Sweetwater	Creek

Amenities
Administrative
Property	&	Casualty	Insurance 43,218$																	 43,218$																	 40,216$																									 3,002																												
Facility	Management 266,340																 199,755																 212,158																								 (12,403)																							
Performance	Incentive 10,000																			 10,000																			 8,492																														 1,508																												
Info	Technology -																																		 -																																		 795																																		 (795)																														
Travel	and	Per	Diem -																																		 1																																 114																																		 (113)																														
Licenses	&	Permits 770																										 350																										 350																																		 -																																							
Subscriptions	&	Memberships 2,040																						 1,530																						 1,460																														 70																																			
Training -																																		 -																																		 706																																		 (706)																														
Office	Supplies 3,000																						 2,250																						 1,900																														 350																																
Office	Equipment 2,500																						 1,875																						 987																																		 888																																
Communication	-	Telephone/Internet/TV 12,000																			 9,000																						 6,611																														 2,389																												
Internet/Telephone	-	Guard	House 4,500																						 3,375																						 2,251																														 1,124																												
Field
Field	Management	Fees	 92,602																			 69,451																			 69,451																											 -																																							
Facility	Maintenance	-	Cost	Share -																																		 -																																		 5,532																														 (5,532)																										
General	Utilities 78,000																			 58,500																			 57,783																											 717																																
Refuse	Removal 6,725																						 5,044																						 6,841																														 (1,797)																										
Security 41,137																			 30,853																			 26,129																											 4,724																												
Janitorial	Services 43,467																			 30,789																			 30,789																											 -																																							
Operating	Supplies	-	Spa	&	Paper	 4,000																						 3,000																						 2,182																														 818																																
Operating	Supplies	-	Uniforms 500																										 500																										 535																																		 (35)																																	
Cleaning	Supplies 12,500																			 9,375																						 7,508																														 1,867																												
Amenity	Landscape	Maintenance	&	Improvements 22,872																			 22,872																			 35,070																											 (12,198)																							
Gate	Repairs	&	Maintenance 2,500																						 1,875																						 868																																		 1,007																												
Dog	Park	Repairs	&	Maintenance 6,000																						 4,500																						 1,167																														 3,333																												
Park	Mulch 5,000																						 -																																		 -																																										 -																																							
Miscellaneous	Field	Supplies 4,100																						 790																										 790																																		 -																																							
Buildings	Repairs	&	Maintenance 30,000																			 30,000																			 35,190																											 (5,190)																										
Pest	Control 1,800																						 1,350																						 1,145																														 205																																
Pool	Maintenance	-	Contract 19,469																			 14,904																			 14,904																											 -																																							
Pool	Repairs	&	Maintenance 3,000																						 1,403																						 1,403																														 -																																							
Pool	Chemicals 30,000																			 22,500																			 20,795																											 1,705																												
Signage	&	Amenity	Repairs 300																										 225																										 122																																		 103																																
Special	Events 2,000																						 1,500																						 1,557																														 (57)																																	
Park	Repair	&	Maintenance 10,000																			 8,585																						 8,585																														 -																																							
Pickleball	Repair	&	Maintenance 3,000																						 3,000																						 9,039																														 (6,039)																										
Guardhouse	Maintenance 2,500																						 -																																		 -																																										 -																																							
Playground	Repairs	&	Maintenance 5,000																						 5,000																						 7,139																														 (2,139)																										
Fitness	
Professional	Services	-	Outside	Fitness 55,515																			 41,636																			 33,230																											 8,406																												
Fitness	Equipment	Repairs	&	Maintenance 7,000																						 5,250																						 2,925																														 2,325																												
Fitness	Equipment	Rental 36,635																			 27,477																			 26,142																											 1,335																												
Miniature	Golf	Course	Maintenance 500																										 355																										 355																																		 -																																							
Miscellaneous	Fitness	Supplies 6,300																						 4,725																						 650																																		 4,075																												
Capital	Outlay	-	Machinery	&	Equipment 6,400																						 1,177																						 1,177																														 -																																							
Capital	Outlay				 -																																		 -																																		 23,702																											 (23,702)																							

Subtotal	Amenities 883,190$														 677,990$														 708,748$																						 (30,758)$																				

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance	and	Amenities 1,508,600$										 1,109,883$										 1,095,962$																		 13,921$																						

Reserves

Capital	Reserve	Transfer	 100,000$														 100,000$														 100,000																								 -$																																					

Subtotal	Reserves 100,000$														 100,000$														 100,000$																						 -$																																					

Total	Expenditures 1,884,822$										 1,247,914$										 1,344,579$																		 3,334$																									

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (0)$																												 538,674$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning -$																															 501,852$																						

Fund	Balance	-	Ending (0)$																												 1,040,527$																		

3



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2019

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	June	30,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual

Budget Thru	06/30/25 Thru	06/30/25 Variance

Revenues:

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 741,440$		 			 741,440$		 			 734,210$		 			 (7,230)$		 			
Special	Assessments	-	Prepayments -	 -	 10,926	 10,926	
Interest	Income 30,000	 22,500	 21,362	 (1,138)	

Total		Revenues 771,440$		 			 763,940$		 			 766,498$		 			 2,558$		 			

Expenditures:

Series	2019	-	A1
Interest	-	11/01 81,650$		 			 81,650$		 			 81,650$		 			 -$		 		
Special	Call	-11/1 -	 10,000	
Interest	-	5/1 81,650	 81,650	 81,503	 147	
Principal	-	5/1 360,000																 360,000																 360,000																 -	
Special	Call	-	5/1 -	 -	 10,000	 (10,000)																	

Series	2019	-	A2
Interest	-	11/01 44,200	 44,200	 44,200	 -	
Special	Call	-11/1 -	 5,000	
Interest	-	05/01 44,200	 44,200	 44,113	 88	
Principal	-	05/01 130,000																 130,000																 125,000																 5,000	
Special	Call	-	5/1 -	 -	 5,000	 (5,000)	

Total	Expenditures 741,700$		 			 741,700$		 			 766,466$		 			 (9,766)$		 			

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 29,740$		 			 22,240$		 			 32$		 			 (7,208)$		 			

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 29,740$		 			 22,240$		 			 32$		 			 (7,208)$		 			

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 187,616$		 			 432,072$		 			

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 217,356$		 			 432,104$		 			

4



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	June	30,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	06/30/25 Thru	06/30/25 Variance

Revenues

Capital	Reserve	-	Transfer	In 100,000$		 			 100,000$		 			 100,000$		 		 -$		 		
Interest 5,000	 5,000	 8,539	 3,539	
Miscellaneous	Income -	 -	 -	 -	
Insurance	Proceeds -	 -	 -	 -	

Total		Revenues 105,000$		 			 105,000$		 			 108,539$		 		 3,539$		 			

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 30,000$		 			 22,500$		 			 -$		 		 22,500$	 			
Repair	&	Maintenance 21,317	 15,988	 -	 15,988	
Other	Current	Charges 600	 450	 375	 75	
Reserve	Study -	 -	 -	 -	

Total	Expenditures 51,917$		 			 38,938$		 			 375$		 		 38,563$		 			

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 53,083$		 			 108,164$		 		

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In	and	(Out) -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 		 -$	 		

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 		

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 53,083$		 			 108,164$		 		

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 444,309$		 			 405,337$		 		

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 497,392$		 			 513,501$		 		

Capital	Reserve	Study

General Amenities Combined

Description FY 2025-Study (Pg. 17) FY 2025-Study (Pg. 20) Total - Study
Reserves Beginning of Year $609,690 $164,002 $773,692
Contributions 196,300 65,100 261,400               
Interest Income 10,186 6,162 16,348 
Expenditures (217,373) (21,088) (238,461)              
Anticipated Balance $598,803 $214,176 $812,979

Capital Reserve Fund - Actuals

Description Actual
Reserves Beginning of Year 405,337$   
Contributions 100,000$   
Interest Income/Misc Income/Insurance Proceeds 8,539$   
Expenditures (375)$   
Actual Balance $513,501

Variance Reserve Study Vs Actual ($299,478)

5



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District
Capital	Projects	Fund	Series	2019

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	June	30,	2025

Actual
Thru	06/30/25

Revenues
	
Interest	Income 9,887$																				

Total		Revenues 9,887$																				

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	 198,947$														

Total	Expenditures 198,947$														

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (189,060)$												

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (189,060)$												

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 342,181$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 153,121.14$							

6



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:

Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$		 	 182,784$	 			 338,977$		 			 1,117,699$		 			 168,407$		 			 -$		 	 38,881$	 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,846,749$	 			
Fitness	Center	Revenue 1,890	 540	 -	 -	 1,150	 -	 1,100	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,680	
Cost	Sharing	-	Marshall	Creek	Revenue . -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 - -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Interest/Miscellaneous 1,162	 697	 986	 2,135	 6,002	 7,624	 5,073	 4,781	 1,545	 -	 -	 -	 30,005																						
Insurance	Proceeds -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,820	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 1,820	

Total		Revenues 3,052$		 			 184,021$		 			 339,963$		 			 1,119,835$		 			 175,559$		 			 7,624$		 			 46,874$		 			 4,781$		 			 1,545$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 1,883,254$	 			

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 800$		 			 1,000$		 			 800$		 			 1,000$		 			 1,000$		 			 2,000$		 			 1,800$		 			 1,800$		 			 1,000$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 11,200$	 			
Engineering 3,636	 2,082	 1,668	 1,133	 934	 1,368	 2,603	 2,798	 1,929	 -	 -	 -	 18,149	
District	Counsel 3,814	 3,896	 2,202	 6,150	 5,487	 7,936	 13,952	 11,715	 -	 -	 -	 55,151	
Annual	Audit -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 3,800	 -	 -	 -	 3,800	
Assessment	Administration 5,200	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 5,200	
Arbitrage	Rebate -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	
Dissemination	Agent 459	 459	 459	 459	 459	 459	 459	 459	 459	 -	 -	 -	 4,134	
Trustee	Fees 3,143	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 3,143	
Management	Fees 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 3,683	 -	 -	 -	 33,150	
Information	Technology 124	 124	 124	 124	 124	 124	 124	 124	 124	 -	 -	 -	 1,112	
Website	Maintenance 87	 87	 87	 87	 87	 87	 87	 87	 87	 -	 -	 -	 780	
Telephone 36	 9	 27	 41	 36	 11	 39	 82	 69	 -	 -	 -	 349	
Postage	&	Delivery 122	 431	 252	 284	 113	 189	 171	 601	 690	 -	 -	 -	 2,852	
Public	Official	Insurance 5,224	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 5,224	
Copies 153	 204	 183	 7	 321	 18	 449	 379	 1,203	 -	 -	 -	 2,918	
Legal	Advertising -	 -	 -	 -	 182	 96	 92	 189	 96	 -	 -	 -	 655	
Miscellaneous 419	 45	 23	 85	 26	 (174)	 201	 1	 1	 -	 -	 -	 627	
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 - -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 175	
Cost	Share	Expense	-	Marshall	Creek -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	

Total	General	&	Administrative 27,075$		 			 12,019$		 			 9,507$		 			 13,052$		 			 12,451$		 			 15,797$		 			 23,658$		 			 21,917$		 			 13,140$		 			 -$		 	 -$	 	 -$	 	 148,617$	 			

Month	to	Month

7



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Operations	&	Maintenance

Electric 6,062$																			 6,204$																			 6,114$																			 6,358$																			 6,124$																			 6,211$																			 6,240$																			 6,518$																			 1,490$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 51,320$																				
General	Insurance 5,892																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,892																									
Landscape	Maintenance 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 24,273																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 194,184																			
Landscape	Improvements -																																	 1,202																					 -																																	 -																																	 2,055																					 4,975																					 5,910																					 7,706																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 21,848																						
Mulch -																																	 20,000																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 20,000																						
Lake	Maintenance 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 2,122																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 16,980																						
Fountain	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																					
Irrigation	Repairs	&	Maintenance 11,995																		 5,280																					 2,405																					 -																																	 3,970																					 1,720																					 1,765																					 2,015																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 29,150																						
Storm	Clean-Up -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																					
Field	Repairs	&	Maintenance 8,854																					 3,975																					 8,365																					 895																									 45																												 4,252																					 1,285																					 1,080																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 28,751																						
Tree	Removals 800																									 3,600																					 250																									 600																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,400																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 6,650																									
Tree	Replacements -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,820																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,820																									
Tree	Pruning -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,480																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,480																									
Streetlight	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																					
Signage	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,456																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,456																									
Holiday	Decoration	 1,594																					 1,217																					 499																									 307																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 3,616																									
Miscellaneous	Field	Supplies 49																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 19																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 68																																

Subtotal	Operations	&	Maintenance 61,642$																 67,873$																 44,028$																 40,035$																 40,429$																 43,553$																 44,452$																 43,715$																 1,490$																			 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 387,214$																	

Amenities
Administrative
Property	&	Casualty	Insurance 40,216$																 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 40,216$																				
Facility	Management 23,634																		 23,699																		 23,642																		 23,502																		 23,675																		 23,244																		 23,773																		 23,262																		 23,727																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 212,158																			
Performance	Incentive -																																	 8,492																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,492																									
Info	Technology 795																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 795																													
Travel	and	Per	Diem -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 114																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 114																													
Licenses	&	Permits -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 350																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 350																													
Subscriptions	&	Memberships 125																									 125																									 125																									 125																									 125																									 125																									 125																									 460																									 125																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,460																									
Training -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 219																									 -																																	 487																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 706																													
Office	Supplies 188																									 138																									 616																									 59																												 146																									 144																									 23																												 523																									 62																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,900																									
Office	Equipment 107																									 139																									 240																									 25																												 -																																	 52																												 193																									 60																												 172																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 987																													
Communication	-	Telephone/Internet/TV 663																									 664																									 664																									 709																									 756																									 756																									 886																									 756																									 756																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 6,611																									
Internet/Telephone	-	Guard	House 653																									 343																									 357																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 150																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,251																									

8



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Field
Field	Management	Fees	 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 7,717																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 69,451																						
Facility	Maintenance	-	Cost	Share -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 897																									 1,862																					 1,692																					 1,080																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,532																									
General	Utilities 6,163																					 6,720																					 5,422																					 8,154																					 7,042																					 8,509																					 6,288																					 5,045																					 4,439																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 57,783																						
Refuse	Removal 635																									 780																									 780																									 799																									 654																									 654																									 145																									 1,308																					 1,087																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 6,841																									
Security 3,488																					 3,428																					 3,428																					 3,488																					 3,428																					 3,631																					 1,810																					 3,428																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 26,129																						
Janitorial	Services 3,622																					 3,622																					 3,622																					 3,622																					 1,811																					 3,622																					 3,622																					 3,622																					 3,622																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 30,789																						
Operating	Supplies	-	Spa	&	Paper	 475																									 222																									 -																																	 264																									 170																									 63																												 722																									 -																																	 264																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,182																									
Operating	Supplies	-	Uniforms -																																	 -																																	 27																												 508																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 535																													
Cleaning	Supplies 244																									 1,472																					 342																									 1,464																					 80																												 1,320																					 1,941																					 243																									 402																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 7,508																									
Amenity	Landscape	Maintenance	&	Improvements 17,938																		 1,963																					 1,963																					 1,963																					 1,963																					 2,417																					 2,819																					 2,022																					 2,022																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 35,070																						
Gate	Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 868																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 868																													
Dog	Park	Repairs	&	Maintenance 286																									 -																																	 143																									 129																									 136																									 172																									 301																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,167																									
Park	Mulch -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																					
Miscellaneous	Field	Supplies -																																	 34																												 -																																	 58																												 -																																	 61																												 515																									 111																									 11																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 790																													
Buildings	Repairs	&	Maintenance 28,243																		 75																												 4,111																					 718																									 34																												 1,030																					 258																									 475																									 247																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 35,190																						
Pest	Control 81																												 81																												 81																												 84																												 484																									 84																												 167																									 -																																	 84																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,145																									
Pool	Maintenance	-	Contract 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,622																					 1,925																					 1,622																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 14,904																						
Pool	Repairs	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 358																									 165																									 -																																	 880																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,403																									
Pool	Chemicals 2,055																					 2,160																					 2,498																					 2,397																					 2,432																					 2,158																					 2,311																					 2,306																					 2,477																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 20,795																						
Signage	&	Amenity	Repairs 61																												 -																																	 -																																	 40																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 22																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 122																													
Special	Events -																																	 164																									 595																									 124																									 29																												 17																												 100																									 530																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,557																									
Park	Repair	&	Maintenance 8,585																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,585																									
Pickleball	Repair	&	Maintenance 1,800																					 -																																	 908																									 -																																	 76																												 10																												 6,215																					 29																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 9,039																									
Guardhouse	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																					
Playground	Repairs	&	Maintenance 17																												 5,589																					 1,391																					 142																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 7,139																									
Fitness	
Professional	Services	-	Outside	Fitness 4,115																					 3,570																					 2,595																					 4,910																					 3,485																					 3,450																					 3,625																					 4,015																					 3,465																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 33,230																						
Fitness	Equipment	Repairs	&	Maintenance 1,469																					 13																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 476																									 -																																	 967																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,925																									
Fitness	Equipment	Rental 3,053																					 3,053																					 3,053																					 2,540																					 3,053																					 3,258																					 2,540																					 3,053																					 2,540																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 26,142																						
Miniature	Golf	Course	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 355																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 355																													
Miscellaneous	Fitness	Supplies 117																									 76																												 -																																	 215																									 18																												 21																												 67																												 74																												 61																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 650																													
Capital	Outlay	-	Machinery	&	Equipment -																																	 -																																	 795																									 -																																	 167																									 125																									 90																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,177																									
Capital	Outlay		 -																																	 19,610																		 -																																	 -																																	 4,092																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 23,702																						

Subtotal	Amenities 158,166$													 95,572$																 67,093$																 65,528$																 64,214$																 65,886$																 70,530$																 63,644$																 58,116$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 708,748$																	

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance	and	Amenities 219,808$													 163,444$													 111,120$													 105,563$													 104,643$													 109,439$													 114,982$													 107,358$													 59,606$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,095,962$													

Reserves

Capital	Reserve	Transfer	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 100,000															 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 100,000																			

Subtotal	Reserves -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 100,000$													 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 100,000$																	

Total	Expenditures 246,883$													 175,463$													 120,628$													 118,615$													 117,094$													 125,236$													 138,640$													 229,275$													 72,746$																 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 1,344,579$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (243,831)$											 8,558$																			 219,335$													 1,001,220$									 58,465$																 (117,612)$											 (91,766)$														 (224,495)$											 (71,201)$														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 538,674$																	

9



Sweetwater	Creek
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate:

2.000%,	2.125%,	
2.250%,	2.375%,	
2.500%,	2.950%,	
3.170%

Maturity	Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve	Fund	Definition MAXIMUM	ANNUAL	DEBT	SERVICE
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $133,070
Reserve	Fund	Balance 133,070																											

Bonds	Outstanding	-	7/30/19 $7,825,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20 ($330,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20	(Special	Call) ($15,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/20	(Special	Call) ($40,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($340,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21	(Special	Call) ($40,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/21	(Special	Call) ($15,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($340,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/22	(Special	Call) ($15,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($345,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/24 ($355,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/24	(Special	Call) ($10,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/24	(Special	Call) ($10,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/25 ($360,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/25	(Special	Call) ($10,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $5,600,000

Interest	Rate: 3.560%,	4.020%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2038
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	MAXIMUM	ANNUAL	DEBT	SERVICE
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $107,600
Reserve	Fund	Balance 107,700																											

Bonds	Outstanding	-	7/30/19 $2,980,000
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20 ($110,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/20	(Special	Call) ($10,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/20	(Special	Call) ($15,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21 ($115,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/21	(Special	Call) ($15,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/21	(Special	Call) ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22 ($115,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/22	(Special	Call) ($25,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/22	(Special	Call) ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23 ($120,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/23	(Special	Call) ($20,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/24 ($125,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/24	(Special	Call) ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	11/1/24	(Special	Call) ($5,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/25 ($125,000)
Less:	Principal	Payment	-	5/1/25	(Special	Call) ($5,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $2,160,000

SERIES	2019A-1,	SPECIAL	ASSESSMENT	REVENUE	BONDS

SERIES	2019A-2,	SPECIAL	ASSESSMENT	REVENUE	BONDS

10



Gross	Assessments 1,976,407.34$																	 785,758.55$																		 2,762,165.89$																	
Net	Assessments 1,857,822.90$																	 738,613.04$																		 2,596,435.94$																	

allocation	in	% 71.55% 28.45% 100.00%

Date Distribution Net	Receipts O&M	Portion
2019-																					Debt	

Service Total

11/05/24 1 28,463.12$																								 20,366.16$																								 8,096.96$																								 28,463.12$																								
11/15/24 2 81,592.39																										 58,381.65																										 23,210.74																								 81,592.39																										
11/19/24 3 145,398.42																							 104,036.66																							 41,361.76																								 145,398.42																							
12/06/24 4 217,599.54																							 155,698.59																							 61,900.95																								 217,599.54																							
12/18/24 5 256,144.50																							 183,278.27																							 72,865.78																								 256,144.05																							
01/10/25 6 1,556,464.73																			 1,113,694.27																			 442,770.46																					 1,556,464.73																			
01/14/25 INTEREST	1 5,597.31																													 4,005.03																													 1,592.28																											 5,597.31																													
02/21/25 7 235,360.47																							 168,407.03																							 66,953.44																								 235,360.47																							
04/08/25 8 51,573.79																										 36,902.50																										 14,671.29																								 51,573.79																										
04/14/25 INTEREST	2 2,765.13																													 1,978.53																													 786.60																															 2,765.13																													

-																																										 -																																										 -																																							 -																																										
-																																										 -																																										 -																																							 -																																										
-																																										 -																																										 -																																							 -																																										
-																																										 -																																										 -																																							 -																																										

TOTAL 2,580,959.40$																	 1,846,748.69$																	 734,210.26$																		 2,580,958.95$																	

99.40% Percent	Collected
15,476.54$																								 Balance	Remaining	to	Collect

Sweetwater	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Special	Assessment	Receipts	-	St.	John's	County
Fiscal	Year	2025

ON	ROLL	ASSESSMENTS

11



Sweetwater	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition

11/15/19 1 England Thims & Miller Invoices: 191327, 191598, 191935 - Traffic Study & Certification Package 8,032.00$     
11/15/19 2 East Coast Wells & Pump Service Invoice: 34301 - Replaced Irrigation Pump 4,293.70$     

1/3/20 3 Performance Painting Contractors, Inc. Invoice: 9579 - Mobilization 8,090.00$     
1/3/20 4 AC Concrete Enterprise, Inc. Invoice: AB - Sidewalk Addition 6,250.00$     
1/3/20 5 Reflections Invoice: 191036 - Roof Clean 4,495.00$     
1/6/20 6 Rick Arsenault Certified Pool Consultant, Inc. Invoice: SWCrefC120 - 40% Deposit to start services 46,000.00$     
1/6/20 7 Rick Arsenault Certified Pool Consultant, Inc. Invoice: SWCrefD120 - 10% upon execution of the Agreement 11,500.00$     
2/6/20 8 East Coast Wells & Pump Service Invoices: 34271 & 34167 - Fixed Pump Motor & Replaced Bad Motor 2,137.00$     
2/6/20 9 Rick Arsenault Certified Pool Consultant, Inc. Invoice: SWCrffnl220 - 10% Balance Upon Final Sign Off 11,500.00$     

2/24/20 10 JLC Construction Inc. Invoice: 1/20/2020 - Deposit for Perogola Replacement 6,790.80$     
2/26/20 11 Performance Painting Contractors, Inc. Invoice: 9578 - Power Wash and Paint 35,240.00$     
2/24/20 12 Rick Arsenault Certified Pool Consultant, Inc. Invoice: SWCrefF220 - 40% Commencement of Filling 46,000.00$     
2/26/20 13 Rick Arsenault Certified Pool Consultant, Inc. Invoice: SWCgtr220 - Gutter Grating Supports repaired 500.00$     
3/17/20 14 Walter Carucci AE Invoice: 1 - Services for Palencia Fitness Center from 11/11/19 thru 3/2/19 5,034.68$     
3/17/20 15 Bob's Backflow & Plumbing Services, Inc. Invoice: 65745 -Back Flow Testing 265.00$     
3/23/20 16 JLC Construction Inc. Invoice: 3/20/2020 - Final payment for Perogola Replacement 6,790.80$     
4/8/20 17 England Thims & Miller Invoice: 0193131 Traffic Study & Certification Package 3,000.02$     

4/16/20 18 England Thims & Miller Invoice: 0193703 Traffice Study & Certification Package 1,062.00$     
5/20/20 19 Fitness International Associates Corp Invoice: 2904 Flooring 4,000.44$     
6/9/20 20 Beacon Electrical Contractors Inc Invoice: 200503 - Electrical work 16,357.00$     

6/15/20 21 Sundancer Sign Graphics Invoice: 2564 - Street Sign 12,310.00$     
6/22/20 22 Yellowstone Landscape Invoice: JAX120765 & JAX 120768 - Onda Field Full Irrigation & Sod 25,583.33$     
7/14/20 23 Hopping Green & Sams Invoice: 113207, 113803, 114427, 115066 - Project Construction 1,053.50$     
7/31/20 24 Duval Asphalt Invoice: 21750 - Stripping - Layout Stripe Crosswalks 1,458.00$     
8/7/20 25 Yellowstone Landscape Invoice: AJAX120768 - Onda Field Irrigation & Sod 24,722.16$     

9/10/20 26 Radarsign Invoice: 10761 - Solar Powered 7,888.00$     
9/10/20 27 Hopping Green & Sams Invoice: 116998 - Legal Services 559.00$     
9/14/20 28 Sweetwater Creek CDD Invoice: 2940 & 2904 Deposit paid via credit card for flooring 2,644.28$     

10/21/20 29 Hopping Green & Sams Invoice: 114427 - Legal services 258.00$     
10/29/20 30 Hopping Green & Sams Invoice #117953 - Project Construction Legal Services 1,075.00$     
11/16/20 31 Clark Advisory Services, LLC Services Rendered June 2020-October 2020 5,034.00$     
2/17/21 32 Yellowstone Landscape Invoice #173437 - Irrigation Repairs 58,703.67$     
2/17/21 33 Armstrong Fence Company Invoice #20210221 -  Deposit for Vinyl Coated chain-link Ensenda Park 2,570.79$     
5/13/21 34 Armstrong Fence Company Invoice #20210547 Remaining balance for Vinyl Coated chain-link 2,570.78$     
5/13/21 35 Riverside Management Services Invoice #13 Soccer Goals & Lacrosse Equipment 3,444.73$     
5/13/21 36 Hopping Green & Sams Invoice: 121275 - Legal Services 210.00$     
3/8/22 37 England Thims & Miller Invoice 0201371 - Engineer's Report 2,500.00$     

4/20/22 38 Invision Construction Invoice #0001 Fitness Center Expansion Process 2,000.00$     
4/20/22 39 Basham & Lucas Desing Group Inc Invoice #8851 Palencia Amenity & CDs 5,200.00$     
7/11/22 40 Basham & Lucas Desing Group Inc Invoice #8929 Palencia Amenity & CDs 3,889.78$     
6/22/22 41 England Thims & Miller Invoice #203006 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 3,750.00$     
6/22/22 42 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #2879 2019 Project Construction 217.00$     
7/11/22 43 Basham & Lucas Desing Group Inc Invoice #8963 Palencia Amenity & CDs 13,600.00$     
8/8/22 44 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #2993 2019 Project Construction 344.50$     
8/8/22 45 England Thims & Miller Invoice #203518 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 6,250.00$     
8/8/22 46 Basham & Lucas Desing Group Inc Invoice #9014 Palencia Amenity & CDs 13,025.00$     

9/19/22 47 ECS Florida LLC Palencia Fitness Center Addition Invoice #995173 3,500.00$     
9/19/22 48 England Thims & Miller Invoice #204046 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 7,392.55$     
9/19/22 49 Basham & Lucas Desing Group Inc Invoice #9028 Palencia Amenity & CDs 8,046.25$     
9/19/22 50 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #3599 2019 Project Construction 992.00$     
9/19/22 51 England Thims & Miller Invoice #204510 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 7,375.00$     
9/19/22 52 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #3955 2019 Project Construction 726.00$     
11/8/22 53 Bartram Trail Surveying Invoice # 5394 Palencia Fitness Center Topographic Survey 2,900.00$     
11/8/22 54 England Thims & Miller Invoice #204943 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 15,013.75$     
11/8/22 55 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #3955 2019 Project Construction 248.00$     
11/8/22 56 Heartline Fitness Systems Deposit Invoice #151945 50% deposit on Fitness Equipment 7,498.94$     
11/8/22 57 Heartline Fitness Systems Deposit Invoice #151948 50% deposit on Flooring Material 3,535.61$     
12/5/22 58 England Thims & Miller Invoice #205415 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 1,486.25$     
12/5/22 59 Sweetwater Creek CDD-Capital Reserve Studio 1+ Professional Design Services Inv #21.069 Palencia Fitness Club 10,375.00$     

12/13/22 60 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #4873 2019 Project Construction 168.00$     
12/13/22 61 Invision Construction Invoice #PAL_001 Initial deposit per agreement 42,531.00$     
12/13/22 62 England Thims & Miller Invoice #204510 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 10,120.00$     
1/11/23 63 Sweetwater Creek CDD Palencia Interior Renovation Change Order Id #PAL_002 Invision Construction Inc 13,315.00$     
1/11/23 64 England Thims & Miller Invoice #205795 Palencia Fitness Center Addition & Modification 983.75$     
1/11/23 65 KE Law Group PLLC Invoice #5089 2019 Project Construction 31.00$     
1/11/23 66 IT Systems of Jacksonville LLC Invoice #1312 Deposit for New Audio System for Amenity Center 2,100.00$     
1/17/23 68 Bartram Trail Surveying Inc Invoice #5651 Palencia Fitness Cneter Topographic Survey 1/4/23 3,080.00$     
2/14/23 67 Sweetwater Creek CDD Invoice #1226 Mirrors for Fitness Room - Nassau Windows & Glass 5,300.00$     
2/14/23 69 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 206344 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications 367.50$     

2/14/23 70 Sweetwater Creek CDD-Capital Reserve
Invoice# 01.10.2023 Anastasia Pool & Spa Inc Gas Heater Replacement for Pool and Invoice# 

PAL_004 Invision Construction Inc for Fitness Interior Renovation 16,218.00$     
2/14/23 71 Sweetwater Creek CDD Invoice #1231 Nassau Windows & Glass Inc. Rain Glass installation for gym 850.00$     
2/28/23 73 Invision Construction Final Payment per agreement for Palencia Interior Renovation 42,531.00$     
3/14/23 72 Bartram Trail Surveying Inc Invoice #5789 Palencia Fitness Cneter Topographic Survey 2/7/23 770.00$     
4/4/23 74 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 207105 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications 6,275.00$     

4/24/23 75 Design 2 Wellness Invoice #41744 - Strength Equipment for remodel 21,441.00$     
4/24/23 76 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 207521 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications 9,617.50$     
4/24/23 77 IT Systems of Jacksonville LLC Invoice #1319 Wire work for coax for cameras 3,055.00$     
4/24/23 78 Heartline Fitness Systems Deposit Invoice #154186-F Final payment on Flooring Materials 3,827.85$     
4/24/23 79 Sweetwater Creek CDD Deposit Invoice #151945-F Final payment for Fitness Equipment 7,498.93$     
4/24/23 80 Motley Electric Invoice #266805595 Install Addt'l wiring/reconfigure circuits for Treadmill 1,020.00$     
4/24/23 81 Feather & Bloom Invoice #000714 Moss Wall & Painting for Zen Room 2,775.00$     
5/9/23 82 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice# 6480 2019 Project Construction 1,485.50$     
5/9/23 83 Sweetwater Creek CDD Invoice #1312 IT Systems Install amplifier and speakers. 2,100.00$     

5/9/23 84 Sweetwater Creek CDD
Invoice # PAL_003 Invision Construction Additional Electrical items, HV AC pipe dryer vent, 

door, hall storage, trimming, painting, flooring, and plumbing washer. 15,000.00$     

Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2019

12



Sweetwater	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition

Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2019

5/9/23 85 Invision Construction Progress billing per agreement for Palencia Interior Renovation Change Order Id #PAL_004 5,190.00$                     
5/15/23 86 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 208098 Pickle ball Courts Addition & Modifications. 3,023.75$                     

5/15/23 87 Heartline Fitness Systems
Remaining Balance Invoice# 154021-F Final payment for Resistance Wall Gym & Cable Caddy 

Complete Kit and Training Ropes. 1,290.90$                     
5/15/23 88 Heartline Fitness Systems Remaining Balance Invoice# 151948-F Final payment for Flooring Materials. 2,624.08$                     
6/5/23 89 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice# 6585 2019 Project Construction 1,179.00$                     
6/5/23 90 Invision Construction Change Order 4 Emergency Light Invoice #PAL_006 600.00$                        
6/5/23 91 Feather & Bloom Invoice #000725 Lighting install and custom hanging wood paneling for Zen Room 3,300.00$                     

6/13/23 92 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 208489 Pickle ball Courts Addition & Modifications. 5,855.00$                     
6/13/23 93 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice# 6846 2019 Project Construction 2,661.50$                     
7/7/23 94 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 23159 Topography Survey for Onda Park 5,240.00$                     
7/7/23 95 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-1 16,412.00$                   
7/7/23 96 England Thims & Miller Invoice# 208897 Pickle ball Courts Addition & Modifications. 2,076.25$                     

7/24/23 97 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice# 7090 2019 Project Construction 2,719.50$                     
7/24/23 98 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-2 97,369.00$                   
8/14/23 99 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 209405 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications. 563.75$                        
8/14/23 100 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 7262 2019 Project Construction 482.00$                        
8/16/23 101 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-3 111,695.00$                 
9/15/23 102 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 209910 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications. 820.00$                        
9/15/23 103 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 7481 2019 Project Construction 673.08$                        
9/28/23 104 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-4 119,712.00$                 

10/19/23 105 Poly-Wood LLC Invoice # 873994 Vineyard Dining Arm chairs and 48” Round Dining Tables 7,420.00$                     
10/17/23 106 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 7759 2019 Project Construction 375.00$                        
10/30/23 107 American Electrical Contracting Inc Palencia Pickleball Courts Electrical Lighting Install Invoice #W61855 24,485.00$                   
10/30/23 108 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-5 72,718.00$                   
11/28/23 109 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 7975 2019 Project Construction 106.00$                        
11/28/23 110 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-6 22,208.00$                   
11/29/23 111 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 210296 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications. 256.25$                        
12/7/23 112 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 210807 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications. 367.45$                        

12/5/23 113 Sweetwater Creek CDD
Pickball fees, sound system upgrade aerobics room, and Washer Dryer/Warranty for Amenity 

Center paid with card. 2,959.95$                     
12/6/23 114 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 211276 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications. 205.00$                        
1/10/24 115 Duval Landscape Maintenance Invoice # 25237 Revamp amenity center irrigation. 12,917.16$                   
1/10/24 116 Sweetwater Creek CDD-Capital Reserve Dowling Douglas Invoice # 211276 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications – Nov 2023. 2,600.00$                     
1/22/24 117 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 8459 2019 Project Construction 124.00$                        
2/13/24 118 Atlantic Security Video Surveillance System Equipment and Installation 50% Dep Invoice #327381-Deposit 5,946.88$                     
2/13/24 119 Alfred W Grover, Electrical Contractor Invoice  # 12524 - 6 Outdoor Motion Detector-LED light fixture for Pickleball Project 3,800.00$                     
2/13/24 120 England Thims & Miller Invoice # 212440 Pickleball Courts Addition & Modifications - Nov 2023. 1,571.25$                     
2/14/24 121 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 8723 2019 Project Construction 155.00$                        
2/20/24 122 American Electrical Contracting Inc Palencia Pickleball Courts Install two light deflectors Invoice #W64623 1,840.00$                     
2/22/24 123 American Electrical Contracting Inc Palencia Pickleball Courts Change timer to digital Invoice #W63086 140.65$                        
2/22/24 124 American Electrical Contracting Inc Palencia Pickleball Courts Change Order Lighting Project Invoice #W62910 3,227.30$                     
2/27/24 125 Hoffman Commercial Construction LLC Palencia Pickleball Courts Pay App 2304-7-Final Payment 25,623.00$                   
3/12/24 126 Workman's Kwik Fix Plumbing Dvision Invoice # 97146 – installed self close metering faucet in ensenada park per contract 1,280.00$                     

3/12/24 127 England Thims & Miller
Invoice #212712 – CEI Services - Finalized documents and pay apps for Pickleball Court 

closeout with SJC and Owner 307.50$                        

3/12/24 128 Best Fence and Rail fo FL LLC
Invoice # 2313106. Furnished & installed 296’ of 48” high 2-rail ascot style black aluminum 

fence with (3) 4’ gate 8,174.00$                     
3/20/24 129 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 8974 2019 Project Construction 1,437.50$                     
4/30/24 130 Matthews/DCCM Invoice # 190784 - Due Diligence and Site Planning 2,168.75$                     
5/20/24 131 Matthews/DCCM Invoice # 190937 - Due Diligence and Site Planning 2,037.50$                     
5/31/24 132 Atlantic Security Invoice # 331612Final Invoice for Security System 5,884.37$                     
6/11/24 133 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 9385 2019 Project Construction 393.50$                        
6/27/24 134 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 9385 2019 Project Construction 465.00$                        
7/26/24 135 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 9861 2019 Project Construction 93.00$                          
8/5/24 136 Matthews/DCCM Invoice # 191118 - Due Diligence and Site Planning 2,475.00$                     
8/5/24 137 Matthews/DCCM Invoice # 191467 - Onda Park Survey and Construction Plans 9,489.26$                     

8/21/24 138 Matthews/DCCM Invoice # 191636 - Onda Park Construction Plans/Landscape/Meetings 5,100.00$                     
8/28/24 139 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10065 2019 Project Construction 583.00$                        
9/13/24 140 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10430 2019 Project Construction 3,403.50$                     
11/5/24 141 Matthews/DCCM Invoice #191859 Onda Park 1,186.88$                     

10/18/24 142 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10546 2019 Project Construction 332.00$                        
11/5/24 143 Sweetwater Creek CDD-Capital Reserve Envera System upgrade deposit and install balance 15,810.12$                   
12/9/24 144 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10810 2019 Project Construction 553.75$                        

12/23/24 145 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10975 2019 Project Construction 124.00$                        
12/24/24 146 Design 2 Wellness Invoice #49881 Strenght Equipment Replacement-50% deposit 43,663.00$                   
2/17/25 147 Lee and Cates Quote #193688 Polished Mirror Wall Install Deposit 1,130.43$                     
2/17/25 148 C Buss Entreprses Inc Invoice #3019 Pool Parts and Labor 11,750.00$                   
2/21/25 149 BYO Recreation Invoice #115817 Two Shades and Materials 26,689.40$                   
2/21/25 150 National Playground Construction Invoice #115858 Down Payment for Installation & Permitting 19,515.00$                   
2/24/25 151 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 10975 2019 Project Construction 1,476.50$                     
3/5/25 152 Invision Construction Invoice #PALF-001- Storage Room Final/Invoice #PKNE-001-Knee Wall in Fitness Ctr 8,753.00$                     
3/5/25 152 Invision Construction Invoice #PKNE-001-Knee Wall in Fitness Ctr 3,979.00$                     

3/18/25 153 Matthews/DCCM Invoice #192893 - Onda Residential - Planning, Mod App & Meetings 3,920.00$                     
3/18/25 154 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice # 11682 2019 Project Construction 744.00$                        
4/2/25 155 Sweetwater Creek CDD Invoice #164342 and #64340 Polish mirror wall install Workout Room 2,323.33$                     
4/2/25 156 JD Goals Inc Invoice #112528 50% Deposit for Mini Golf Resurfacing 5,667.50$                     

4/29/25 157 Design 2 Wellness Invoice #50458, 50492, 50926 Additional Equipment for Fitness Center 3,508.00$                     
5/19/25 158 Matthews/DCCM Invoice #193071 and Invoice #193217  Onda Residential - Planning, Mod App & Meetings 1,881.86$                     
5/30/25 159 Matthews/DCCM Invoice #192481 Onda Park  Meetings and Coordination 105.00$                        
5/27/25 160 Design 2 Wellness Invoice #49881 Strength Equipment Replacement-Final Payment 43,193.00$                   
5/30/25 161 Sweetwater Creek CDD TreeTop Products for Park Benches Order #TP200077866 2,364.02$                     
6/1/25 162 C Buss Entreprses Inc Invoice #3020 for Pool Parts and Labor 11,750.00$                   

6/13/25 163 All Weather Contractors Invoice #195650 - Plumbing for approved ice machine 4,270.00$                     
7/7/25 164 Best Fence and Rail fo FL LLC Invoice #2504118 Deposit for fence expansion at Dog Park 1,029.00$                     

6/20/25 165 Kilinski/Van Wyk PLLC Invoice #12430 and #12184 2019 Project Construction 1,586.00$                     
7/2/25 166 Design 2 Wellness Invoice #51828-Intenza e2 Series Escalate Stepmill w/19" Touchscreen & Warranty 6,700.00$                     
7/2/25 167 Sweetwater Creek CDD R-33485 sign for Mini Golf Renovation 1,082.00$                     
7/7/25 168 JD Goals Inc Invoice #112528 Remaining Balance for Mini Golf Resurfacing 5,667.50$                     

TOTAL 1,556,329.21$              

13



Sweetwater	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition

Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2019

Project (Construction) Fund at 08/30/19 1,540,777.96$    
Interest Earned and Transfers thru 06/30/25 154,193.89$    

Outstanding Requistions 14,478.50$    
Requisitions Paid thru 06/30/25 (1,556,329.21)$     

153,121.14$    

FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS (CONSTRUCTION)
Hoffman Construction Pickleball Court Construction-Balance to Finish including Retainage $0.00

Pickleball-Water Fountain/Cooler (Projection, not actual) $4,000.00
Fitness Center New Equipment $1,750.24
Boccee Ball Court And Shade $40,000.00
Shade Srutures Playgrounds, Pickleball $93,795.60
Parking Lot for Golf Carts $12,000.00
Dog Park - Las Calinas/Glorietta $21,606.98

District Engineer Costs related to Projects District Engineer Costs (Projection, not actual) $0.00
District Counsel Costs related to Projects District Counsel Costs (Projection, not actual) $0.00

TOTAL PROJECTED PROJECTS $173,152.82

PROJECTED REMAINING PROJECTS (CONSTRUCTION) FUNDS ($20,032)

Remaining Project (Construction) Fund

14



Date check	#'s Amount
General	Fund

6/1/25	-	6/27/25 4310-4325 35,357.08	
7/1/25	-	7/28/25 4326-4339 42,547.72	

	SUBTOTAL $77,904.80

Date check	#'s Amount
Amenity	Fund

6/1/25	-	6/27/25 2979-3001 47,922.90	
7/1/25	-	7/28/25 3002-3041 68,448.15	

	SUBTOTAL $116,371.05

Date check	#'s Amount
Capital	Reserve
07/02/25 39 $38,072.00

	SUBTOTAL $38,072.00

TOTAL $232,347.85

Sweetwater	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Fiscal	Year	2025

Check	Register

15



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



June 2025 Operations & 
Maintenance Expenditures



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  6/27/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 06/27/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - GENERAL

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/06/25 00086 5/28/25 31433    202505 320-53800-46400                                     *            2,785.81
BAHIA GRASS SEED ISLANDS

DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                     2,785.81 004310
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00063 5/30/25 89859    202505 320-53800-47000                                     *            2,122.44

MAY LAKE MAINTENANCE
FUTURE HORIZONS                                                 2,122.44 004311

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00029 6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,683.33

JUN MANAGEMENT FEES
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-35200                                     *               86.67

JUN WEBSITE ADMIN
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-35100                                     *              123.50

JUN INFO TECH
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-31300                                     *              459.33

JUN DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-49000                                     *                 .93

OFFICE SUPPLIES
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-42000                                     *              152.64

POSTAGE
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-42500                                     *              526.80

COPIES
6/01/25 171      202506 310-51300-41000                                     *               69.15

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,102.35 004312

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00090 4/16/25 7091906  202504 310-51300-48000                                     *               91.76

4/23 BOS WS #11225104
GANNETT FL LOCALIQ                                                 91.76 004313

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/09/25 00109 6/05/25 06052025 202506 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6/5/25 CDD WORKSHOP
DANIEL L COLIN                                                    200.00 004314

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/09/25 00089 6/05/25 06052025 202506 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6/5/25 CDD WORKSHOP
JOHN T SMITH                                                      200.00 004315

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/09/25 00051 6/05/25 06052025 202506 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6/5/25 CDD WORKSHOP
ROBERT LISOTTA                                                    200.00 004316

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/09/25 00108 6/05/25 06052025 202506 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

6/5/25 CDD WORKSHOP
RONALD J CERVELLI                                                 200.00 004317

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  6/27/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 06/27/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - GENERAL

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/09/25 00040 6/05/25 06052025 202506 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00
6/5/25 CDD WORKSHOP

STEPHEN J HANDLER                                                 200.00 004318
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00105 5/28/25 195479   202505 320-53800-47301                                     *            1,080.00

CONCRETE GRIND/RMVL RPR
ALL WEATHER CONTRACTORS,INC                                     1,080.00 004319

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00086 4/30/25 31349    202504 320-53800-46400                                     *            5,910.00

OVERSEED BERMUDA TURF
DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                     5,910.00 004320

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00103 6/10/25 193397   202505 310-51300-31100                                     *            2,798.25

MAY ENGINEERING SERVICES
MATTHEWS DESIGN GROUP LLC                                       2,798.25 004321

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00081 6/24/25 144764   202506 310-51300-42500                                     *              675.73

ASSESSMENT MAILED NOTICES
6/24/25 144764   202506 310-51300-42000                                     *              537.28

POSTAGE MAILED NOTICES
ADVANCED DIRECT MARKETING SERVICES                              1,213.01 004322

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00086 5/30/25 31444    202505 320-53800-47300                                     *            1,350.00

MAY CYCLE STOP INSTALL
DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                     1,350.00 004323

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00090 5/31/25 7145342  202505 310-51300-48000                                     *               89.04

5/14 MTG #11270025
5/31/25 7145342  202505 310-51300-48000                                     *               99.92

SWC AUDIT RFP #11212945
GANNETT FL LOCALIQ                                                188.96 004324

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00094 6/17/25 12429    202505 310-51300-31500                                     *           11,714.50

MAY GENERAL COUNSEL
KILINSKI VAN WYK PLLC                                          11,714.50 004325

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 35,357.08

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               35,357.08

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO















































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  6/27/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 06/27/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/06/25 00168 5/28/25 195479   202505 320-53800-47301                                     *            1,080.00
CONCRETE GRIND/RMVL RPR

ALL WEATHER CONTRACTORS INC                                     1,080.00 002979
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00170 5/12/25 05122025 202504 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

4/26 SUB FITNESS CLASS
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     35.00 002980

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00170 5/12/25 05122025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

5/3 SUB FITNESS CLASS
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     35.00 002981

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00170 5/30/25 05302025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

5/24 SUB FITNESS CLASS
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     35.00 002982

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00170 5/30/25 05302025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

5/17 SUB FITNESS CLASS
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     35.00 002983

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00131 5/30/25 05302025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

5/19-5/30 FITNESS CLASSES
DIANE LAURA STOEVER                                               200.00 002984

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00128 5/15/25 05152025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              480.00

5/13-5/29 FITNESS CLASSES
ELIANA N ROQUE                                                    480.00 002985

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00127 5/25/25 05252025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              450.00

5/12-5/25 FITNESS CLASSES
LINA HERMEZ                                                       450.00 002986

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00135 5/21/25 05212025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00

5/12-5/21 FITNESS CLASSES
MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 002987

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00135 5/30/25 05302025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00

5/26-6/4 FITNESS CLASSES
MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 002988

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00135 5/30/25 05302025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00

6/9-6/18 FITNESS CLASSES
MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 002989

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00141 5/30/25 05302025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

5/19 FITNESS CLASS
PATRICIA SCOTT                                                     35.00 002990

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  6/27/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 06/27/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/06/25 00104 5/16/25 302      202504 320-53800-12200                                     *            1,862.00
APR FACILITY MAINTENANCE

5/16/25 302      202504 330-53800-49000                                     *              480.15
APR MISCELLANEOUS

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               2,342.15 002991
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00138 5/29/25 05292025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              280.00

5/1-5/29 FITNESS CLASSES
RONALD C CULLUM                                                   280.00 002992

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00136 5/15/25 05152025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

5/6-5/15 FITNESS CLASSES
TIFFANY ROSE CUNNIGHAM                                            140.00 002993

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00136 5/27/25 05272025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

5/20-5/29 FITNESS CLASSES
TIFFANY ROSE CUNNIGHAM                                            140.00 002994

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/06/25 00041 4/10/25 62052206 202504 340-53800-34400                                     *              167.26

APR PEST CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                           167.26 002995

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00170 6/11/25 06112025 202505 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

4/19-6/7 FITNESS CLASSES
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                    140.00 002996

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00019 6/01/25 13129562 202506 330-53800-52002                                     *            2,157.54

JUN POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        2,157.54 002997

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00041 6/05/25 62076414 202506 340-53800-34400                                     *              250.89

JUN PEST CONTROL
6/05/25 62076414 202506 340-53800-34400                                     V              250.89-

JUN PEST CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                              .00 002998

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/13/25 00041 6/05/25 62076414 202506 340-53800-34400                                     *               83.63

JUN PEST CONTROL
TURNER PEST CONTROL LLC                                            83.63 002999

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/25/25 00104 6/18/25 304      202505 320-53800-12200                                     *            1,352.40

MAY FACILITY MAINTENANCE
6/18/25 304      202505 330-53800-49000                                     *              111.48

MAY MISCELLANEOUS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               1,463.88 003000

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  6/27/25          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 06/27/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/25/25 00104 6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-10000                                     *           10,319.83
JUN FITNESS CNTR MANAGER

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-10000                                     *            6,868.07
JUN ASSISTANT MANAGER

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-10000                                     *            5,007.08
JUN FRONT DESK ATTENDANTS

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-10000                                     *            1,532.02
MAY FRONT DESK ATTENDANTS

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-46500                                     *            3,622.25
JUN JANITORIAL SERVICES

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-52000                                     *            1,622.42
JUN POOL MAINTENANCE

6/01/25 303      202506 320-53800-12100                                     *            7,716.83
JUN FIELD MANAGEMENT

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-52000                                     *              880.00
POOL RPR-PATCH & PLASTER

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-52002                                     *              113.69
POOL CHEM-TRICHLOR

6/01/25 303      202506 330-53800-52002                                     *              206.25
POOL CHEM-BICARB

RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                              37,888.44 003001
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                 47,922.90

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               47,922.90

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO





























































July 2025 Operations & 
Maintenance Expenditures



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - GENERAL

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/02/25 00086 1/31/25 30003    202506 300-13100-10200                                     *              130.00
JAN FERREIRA CONSTR RPRS

DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                       130.00 004326
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00086 2/17/25 30226    202506 300-13100-10200                                     *            1,945.00

FEB FERREIRA CONSTR RPRS
DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                     1,945.00 004327

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00086 3/26/25 30701    202506 300-13100-10200                                     *            1,565.00

MAR FERREIRA CONSTR RPRS
DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                     1,565.00 004328

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00086 7/01/25 31850    202507 320-53800-46200                                     *           24,273.00

JUL PALENCIA RENEWAL
DUVAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE                                    24,273.00 004329

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00029 7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-34000                                     *            3,683.33

JUL MANAGEMENT FEES
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-35200                                     *               86.67

JUL WEBSITE ADMIN
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-35100                                     *              123.50

JUL INFO TECH
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-31300                                     *              459.33

JUL DISSEM AGENT SRVCS
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-49000                                     *                 .96

OFFICE SUPPLIES
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-42000                                     *              257.01

POSTAGE
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-42500                                     *               11.25

COPIES
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-41000                                     *               78.88

TELEPHONE
7/01/25 172      202507 310-51300-34000                                     *                 .00

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                4,700.93 004330
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00082 6/30/25 61286    202506 310-51300-32200                                     *            3,800.00

FY24 AUDITED FINANCIALS
MCDIRMIT DAVIS LLC                                              3,800.00 004331

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/15/25 00109 7/10/25 07102025 202507 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7/10/25 CDD BOARD MEETING
DANIEL L COLIN                                                    200.00 004332

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/15/25 00089 7/10/25 07102025 202507 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7/10/25 CDD BOARD MEETING
JOHN T SMITH                                                      200.00 004333

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - GENERAL

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/15/25 00051 7/10/25 07102025 202507 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00
7/10/25 CDD BOARD MEETING

ROBERT LISOTTA                                                    200.00 004334
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/15/25 00108 7/10/25 07102025 202507 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7/10/25 CDD BOARD MEETING
RONALD J CERVELLI                                                 200.00 004335

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/15/25 00040 7/10/25 07102025 202507 310-51300-11000                                     *              200.00

7/10/25 CDD BOARD MEETING
STEPHEN J HANDLER                                                 200.00 004336

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00112 7/10/25 2025358  202507 320-53800-43000                                     *            3,109.20

UPLIGHT ROUND A BOUT-DEP
BRIAN BURCHFIELD                                                3,109.20 004337

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00103 7/11/25 193578   202506 310-51300-31100                                     *            1,928.75

JUN ENGINEERING SERVICES
MATTHEWS DESIGN GROUP LLC                                       1,928.75 004338

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00090 6/26/25 7197629  202506 310-51300-48000                                     *               95.84

7/10 MTG #11413831
GANNETT FL LOCALIQ                                                 95.84 004339

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 42,547.72

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               42,547.72

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



























AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/02/25 00131 6/27/25 06272025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              240.00
6/16-6/23 FITNESS CLASSES

DIANE LAURA STOEVER                                               240.00 003002
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00119 5/01/25 31121    202505 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,022.00

MAY FIT CNTR & DOG PARK
DUVAL LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE                                   2,022.00 003003

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00128 6/06/25 06062025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              280.00

6/3-6/6 FITNESS CLASSES
ELIANA N ROQUE                                                    280.00 003004

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00011 6/26/25 06262025 202506 330-53800-40000                                     *              113.90

2 MEALS-FIT CONFERENCE
ERIN GUNIA                                                        113.90 003005

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00127 6/22/25 06222025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              450.00

6/9-6/22 FITNESS CLASSES
LINA HERMEZ                                                       450.00 003006

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00152 6/27/25 06272025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

6/24 FITNESS CLASS
MARILYN J COSTANZO                                                 35.00 003007

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00135 6/18/25 06182025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00

6/9-6/19 FITNESS CLASSES
MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 003008

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00141 6/27/25 06272025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              175.00

6/15-6/27 FITNESS CLASSES
PATRICIA SCOTT                                                    175.00 003009

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00020 6/07/25 18123796 202505 340-53800-49400                                     *               82.95

NAPKINS & DIXIE PLATES
PUBLIX SUPER MARKETS INC                                           82.95 003010

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00138 6/27/25 06272025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              105.00

6/17-6/26 FITNESS CLASSES
RONALD C CULLUM                                                   105.00 003011

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00136 6/19/25 06192025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              105.00

6/5-6/12 FITNESS CLASSES
TIFFANY ROSE CUNNIGHAM                                            105.00 003012

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/02/25 00136 6/19/25 06192025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

6/17-6/26 FITNESS CLASSES
TIFFANY ROSE CUNNIGHAM                                            140.00 003013

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/02/25 00042 7/01/25 356136   202507 330-53800-48400                                     *               75.00
7/1-9/30 BURGLAR MONITOR

VILLAGE KEY & ALARM INC                                            75.00 003014
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00119 7/01/25 31851    202507 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,022.00

JUL FIT CNTR & DOG PARK
DUVAL LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE                                   2,022.00 003015

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00019 7/01/25 13129562 202507 330-53800-52002                                     *            2,157.54

JUL POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        2,157.54 003016

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00104 7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-10000                                     *           10,319.83

JUL FITNESS CNTR MANAGER
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-10000                                     *            6,868.07

JUL ASSISTANT MANAGER
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-10000                                     *            5,007.08

JUL FRONT DESK ATTENDANTS
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-10000                                     *            1,468.79

JUN FRONT DESK ATTENDANTS
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-46500                                     *            3,622.25

JUL JANITORIAL SERVICES
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-52000                                     *            1,622.42

JUL POOL MAINTENANCE SRVC
7/01/25 305      202507 320-53800-12100                                     *            7,716.83

JUL FIELD MANAGEMENT
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               69.96

POOL CHEM-TRICHLOR
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *                9.57

POOL CHEM-SULFURIC ACID
7/01/25 305      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               84.32

POOL CHEM-TILE SOAP
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                              36,789.12 003017

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00170 6/27/25 06272025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *               70.00

6/14-6/21 FITNESS CLASSES
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     70.00 003018

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00170 7/09/25 07092025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *               70.00

6/28-7/5 FITNESS CLASSES
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     70.00 003019

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00131 7/09/25 07092025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

7/7 FITNESS CLASSES
DIANE LAURA STOEVER                                                80.00 003020

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/17/25 00128 7/03/25 07032025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              160.00
7/1-7/3 FITNESS CLASSES

ELIANA N ROQUE                                                    160.00 003021
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00166 7/09/25 07092025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

6/20-7/9 FITNESS CLASSES
KATHY ROY                                                         140.00 003022

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00127 7/09/25 07092025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              490.00

6/23-7/6 FITNESS CLASSES
LINA HERMEZ                                                       490.00 003023

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00152 7/09/25 07092025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

6/24 FITNESS CLASS
MARILYN J COSTANZO                                                 35.00 003024

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00135 7/02/25 07022025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00

6/23-7/2 FITNESS CLASSES
MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 003025

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00141 7/09/25 07092025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              105.00

6/7-6/30 FITNESS CLASSES
PATRICIA SCOTT                                                    105.00 003026

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00136 7/03/25 07032025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00

7/1-7/10 FITNESS CLASSES
TIFFANY ROSE CUNNIGHAM                                            140.00 003027

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00170 7/18/25 07182025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *               35.00

7/12 FITNESS CLASS
ANGELLA BASCOM                                                     35.00 003028

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00131 7/18/25 07182025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              120.00

7/14-7/27 FITNESS CLASSES
DIANE LAURA STOEVER                                               120.00 003029

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00128 7/11/25 07112025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

7/11-7/17 FITNESS CLASSES
ELIANA N ROQUE                                                    200.00 003030

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00128 7/14/25 07142025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              290.00

5/6-6/17 FITNESS CLASSES
ELIANA N ROQUE                                                    290.00 003031

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00166 7/18/25 07182025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *               70.00

7/11-7/16 FITNESS CLASSES
KATHY ROY                                                          70.00 003032

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/24/25 00135 7/16/25 07162025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              245.00
7/7-7/16 FITNESS CLASSES

MIRANDA BULGER                                                    245.00 003033
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00141 7/18/25 07182025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              105.00

6/10-6/14 FITNESS CLASSES
PATRICIA SCOTT                                                    105.00 003034

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00104 7/18/25 306      202506 320-53800-12200                                     *            1,080.00

JUN FACILITY MAINTENANCE
7/18/25 306      202506 330-53800-49000                                     *               10.74

JUN MISCELLANEOUS
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               1,090.74 003035

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00104 7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *            2,010.50

POOL RPR-LED POOL LIGHT
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *            1,154.52

POOL RPR-DEPTH DECK TILES
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              191.88

POOL RPR-DECK VINYL STICK
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              302.50

POOL RPR-EXIST DEPTH DECK
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              230.74

POOL RPR-PLATE COVERS
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              137.50

POOL RPR-TAPCON SCREWS
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              935.00

POOL RPR-DIVE PLATFORM
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               87.45

POOL CHEM-TRICHLOR
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               76.56

POOL CHEM-SULFURIC ACID
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               29.70

POOL CHEM-CAL HYPO
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52002                                     *               74.65

POOL CHEM-NATURAL ENZYMES
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *              880.00

POOL RPR-PATCH SM POPOUT
7/23/25 307      202507 330-53800-52001                                     *            1,855.98

POOL RPR-LED POOL LIGHT
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               7,966.98 003036

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/24/25 00138 7/23/25 07232025 202506 340-53800-34500                                     *              105.00

6/17-7/26 FITNESS CLASSES
RONALD C CULLUM                                                   105.00 003037

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK - AMENITY

BANK B AMENITY

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/24/25 00138 7/23/25 07232025 202507 340-53800-34500                                     *              140.00
7/1-7/10 FITNESS CLASSES

RONALD C CULLUM                                                   140.00 003038
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/28/25 00104 7/25/25 308      202507 320-53800-47301                                     *              293.20

JUL MAINT & REPAIRS
7/25/25 308      202507 330-53800-47800                                     *              120.00

JUL RPR & MAINT BUILDING
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                                 413.20 003039

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/28/25 00104 8/01/25 309      202507 300-15500-10000                                     *            9,072.72

AUG AMENITY CENTER
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC                               9,072.72 003040

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/28/25 00119 6/01/25 31472    202506 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,022.00

JUN FIT CNTR & DOG PARK
DUVAL LANDSCAPING MAINTENANCE                                   2,022.00 003041

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                 68,448.15

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               68,448.15

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO



































































































AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  7/28/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 07/01/2025 - 07/28/2025 ***       SWEETWATER CREEK-CAPITAL RSRVE

BANK A CAPITAL RESERVE FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/22/25 00021 7/21/25 289793   202507 600-58400-60000                                     *           38,072.00
FORD F150 TRUCK

BOZARD FORD COMPANY                                            38,072.00 000039
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 38,072.00

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               38,072.00

SWCC SWEETWATER CRK BPEREGRINO







  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 











  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 



July Operations Report 

 

Building:  

AC fixed again by Wilson Heating and Air 

Ice Machine installed on the pool deck-Drinking fountain with water bottle filler will be 
purchased soon 

Electricians came to diagnose and solve the problem with the treadmills shutting down 

 

Parks:  

Shade structures complete at Ensenada Park and La Palma Park 

Ensenada Dog Park fence expanded 

Round A Bout has uplighting and outlets for Holiday decorations.  Further minimal 
improvements are being pursued for its presentation  

Requisition requests for Bocce Ball at the Fitness Center and Artificial Turf at three 
locations-Contracts pending 

 

Resident Requests and Tasks:  

Removal of resident sod  

Removal of dead tree on Rio del Norte Pond 

Temporary access agreement granted for use of CDD property on Antolin Way 

Pride complaint addressed with St. Johns County Water Management  

Two separate viewings of gate videos  

 

Equipment:  

Equipment repaired: Cardio-Two treadmills 

Squat Machine repaired 

Tools purchased for District use 



 

 

 

Pool:  

Swim Team license agreement signed by team and legal 

Their summer competitive season concluded and the year-round program will return in 
August. 

Depth Markers were replaced but some are already peeling off.  The company has been 
notified. 

Repair of two Aquasol heater/chillers.  They were under warranty. 

 

Pickleball:  

Summer Social League concluded with party for league participants and then any residents 
wanting to join for Open Play. 

Memberships: 776 

 

Staff:  

Onboarding with Vesta 

New hire for Group Fitness Instruction 

All Group Fitness Instructors are resubmitting w9s for transfer on payroll 

Training for the new Maintenance work order app 

 

Envera meeting with Marshall Creek and Supervisor Smith.   

 

 

 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 11 



 

904.355.1831 
245 Riverside Avenue, Suite 300 

Jacksonville, FL 32202 

VestaPropertyServices.com 

Dear Sweetwater CDD Board Supervisors, 
  
Please find the following attached to your meeting agenda packet for your review and discussion during your 
8/7 CDD Meeting: 
  

1. Vesta Fee Summary Comparison: This table shows (1) our RFP response relative to your draft budget 
and the original RFP scope, then (2) approved changes to your maintenance scope and finally 
proposed changes (3) to your manager’s responsibilities and compensation for your review and 
approval. Note that even with these changes per the bottom of the table your associated costs vs 
your draft 2026 budget still decreases in 2026 by 1.6%. 

2. Cost Plus Overview: Please find a summary of the Cost Plus Fee model we reviewed with you 
verbally during our RFP presentation and provided pricing for in our response, however the specific 
language was not mentioned in the RFP response.  This proposal clarifies that Vesta is proposing a 
cost plus model as outlined in the supporting documentation included in your agenda packet. I 
wanted to provide it for your review and answer any questions you might have and reaffirm this is the 
model you would like to pursue. We believe the monthly updates and third party payroll 
documentation from Paycom will provide the necessary transparency you desire. We have found this 
to be very well received by the CDD Boards that have adopted this format. 

  
I will be in attendance at your 8/7 CDD meeting to field any questions you may have, however please feel free 
to reach out to me in advance as well if you prefer. -Jay 
  
  
  
  

 

Jay King  
President, North Florida 
C. 619.708.5164 
 
Vesta Property Services 
245 Riverside Ave, Suite 300, 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 
www.VestaPropertyServices.com 

   
  

 

Your Community. 
Our Commitment. 

 

 

https://nam12.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fvestaps.com%2FVestaPropertyServices&data=05%7C02%7Cjking%40vestapropertyservices.com%7C3a79a4078a3f44793cc808ddcfadcf9e%7C8af8744420b64d0d8eb034a4747a03fd%7C0%7C0%7C638895067620700108%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fdLk1dvPvETiVvADiQ6%2BTAb95m%2Bl5EqVhKFypgHJ9sY%3D&reserved=0


Pricing Explanation

PRICING
EXPLANATION

Set scope of services provided at a set fee regardless of actual costs to provide services



PRICING
EXPLANATION



What is the "Plus"?

The “plus” is a multiplier we use to factor in all other costs not on the Labor Allocation Detail Report (LADR) to ensure we cover
all other expenses (noted below) and make a profit. The multiplier will be tailored to each account and vary from contract to
contract depending on our costs, size of the account (volume discount), other sources of revenue (programming, café, etc.),
etc. The plus multiplier covers everything the contract and or operations require Vesta to pay for that is not billable to the
District such as:

Smart phones
Training materials
Vesta logo uniforms
Computers/tablets/IT not billable
Offsite employee travel that is not billable
Liability Insurance
All costs associated with Regional Support
All costs associated with Corporate Support
Our Profit

Wages
Regular
Onboarding
Holiday
Incentive
Back Pay
Overtime
Vacation 
Retro Pay
Fitness Club
Miscellaneous
Sick
Floating Holiday
Swim Class
Holiday Work

Non-Wage Benefits
Basic ADD
Basic Life
Medical Me

Taxes & WC
FUTA
Medicare
Social Sec.
FL SUI
Worker’s Comp

Cost-Plus Pricing Model

We are proposing to bill based on actual cost of wages and benefits (The Cost) using reporting from our third party
payroll processor (Paycom) and then apply a multiplier (the Plus) to cover non-payroll expenses such as onsite non-
billable items (smart phones, training, materials, uniforms, etc.), insurance, regional and corporate support and a profit.
The multiplier is set at fixed 1.15.  So, for every $1.00 in employee wages and benefits incurred, Vesta charges $1.15.  87% of
every dollar paid to Vesta goes directly to onsite employee compensation and benefits.

Advantages

1.  Creates transparency.  The District knows what compensation flows directly to onsite personnel.
2. This eliminates the inefficiencies created by a multi-year fixed rate contract where uncertainty increases over

time and vendor’s need to increase their margins to offset it resulting in an inevitably winner and loser.  If the vendor
does not accurately project future labor costs, they can lose money and conversely if the vendor overestimates
costs, then they will profit at the expense of the District. Neither scenario is necessarily good for long-term trust and
partnership.

3. The District only pays for what it actually gets.  If a position is gapped, then there are no wages to bill.  There is no
need to negotiate refunds or adjustments.

4. Vesta is still accountable to keep the District’s on budget and will estimate annual expenses for our services
during the annual budget process.

5. Hours, levels of services, and/or scope can be easily adjusted by the Board without any need for reworking the
contract to accommodate preferences or in response to economic pressures.  This arrangement provides flexibility
to tweak costs throughout the year to hit a desired target.

6. When there is a vacancy, multiple candidates for a position at different compensation levels can be considered
with the District only being billed for costs actually incurred.  Someone with less experience could save the District
money whereas a more experienced candidate might cost more but provide greater overall value.  There is no
incentive for the vendor to choose a less expensive option to save against a fixed reimbursement rate.

PRICING
INFORMATION



Process for Cost-Plus Monthly Billing

We will provide Monthly Reporting to compare our actual billing to your budget. • If our
onsite, billable labor is less expensive then we estimated as part of your annual budget
process, then these realized savings would go to the District (not Vesta.) • If our onsite,
billable labor is trending to be more expensive then estimated, we can partner with you
regarding ways to reduce staffing costs proactively, to come in on-budget (or as
directed by the Board.)

Below is an example of the Monthly Reporting we provide as part of our manager’s
report for Heritage Landing CDD:

PRICING
INFORMATION



Vesta Fee Summary Comparison for Sweetwater CDD 7.30.2025 
 

 

FY 2026 
Draft 

Budget

Year 1 
FY26

Year 2 
FY27

Year 3 
FY28

Year 1 
FY26

Year 2 
FY27

Year 3 
FY28 8/9/2025 Year 1 

FY26
Year 2 
FY27

Year 3 
FY28

Management Services Including conducting Board meetings, 
administration, policy implementation, 
statutory compliance, filings and notices, 
contract management, proposal 
coordination, Board advisement, public 
inquiry responses

$18,000 $18,540 $18,910 $18,000 $18,540 $18,910 $18,000 $18,000 $18,540 $18,910

Administrative Services Including meeting minutes preparation, 
records retention per Chapter 119 F.S., 
public records requests handling, agenda 
preparation and delivery

$12,000 $12,360 $12,607 $12,000 $12,360 $12,607 $12,000 $12,000 $12,360 $12,607

Accounting Services Including financial statements preparation, 
accounts payable/receivable, asset and 
investment tracking, annual budgeting, 
purchasing/risk management, capital 
administration, state and bond-related 
filings, trust account monitoring

$16,722 $17,223 $17,568 $16,722 $17,223 $17,568 $16,722 $16,722 $17,223 $17,568

Financial/Assessment Services 
and Revenue Collection

Including assessment billing and 
collection, assessment roll certification, 
direct billing, true-up analysis, property 
owner inquiries

$5,000 $5,150 $5,253 $5,000 $5,150 $5,253 $5,000 $5,000 $5,150 $5,253

Dissemination Agent Services Performing Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement obligations and acting as 
Dissemination Agent

$5,000 $5,150 $5,253 $5,000 $5,150 $5,253 $5,000 $5,000 $5,150 $5,253

Field Management Services Including oversight of landscape/service 
contractors, Board meeting attendance, 
deficiency notifications, RFP 
development, annual budgeting 
assistance, facility maintenance oversight

$10,000 $10,500 $11,025 $10,000 $10,500 $11,025 $10,000 $10,000 $10,500 $11,025

Amenity Management Services Including recreation facilities oversight, 
access card issuance, facility usage and 
condition monitoring, rules enforcement 
and violation resolution

$371,420 $384,391 $396,233 $416,352 $431,222 $444,780 $426,500 $438,609 $454,146 $468,392

$493,113 $438,142 $453,314 $466,849 $483,074 $500,145 $515,396 $493,222 $505,331 $523,069 $539,008

Pool Servicing Pool Chemicals & Pool Maintenance 
Contract (Currently same scope for the 
$50,442 in draft FY26 CDD Budget)

$50,442 $37,200 $38,316 $39,465

Pool Chemicals Estimate for pool chemicals to be paid 
directly by the CDD. Pool servicing to be 
provided by 40 hr Maintenance Tech.

$30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000

$543,555 $475,342 $491,630 $506,314 $513,074 $530,145 $545,396 $523,222 $535,331 $553,069 $569,008 
(68,213) (51,925) (37,241) (30,481) (13,410) 1,841 (20,333) (8,224) 9,514 25,453
-12.5% -10.9% -7.6% -6.0% -2.6% 0.3% -3.7% -1.6% 1.8% 4.6%

Proposed Modification #2 per Chair 
with increased responsibilities for 

General Manager and Fitness Center 
Director Positions

$58,718 

$434,395 

Board Modification #1: 
w/ 40 hrs a week 

Maintenance Tech
Original Pricing in the RFP 

% (Savings) or Increase vs FY26 Draft Budget on 5/7/25 of $543,555 for Same Scope+
$ (Savings) or Increase vs FY26 Draft Budget on 5/7/25 of $543,555 for Same Scope+

Scope of Services Per RFP

Sub Total Annual Fee (per RFP)

Total Annual Fee (per Alternate Approach)



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 12 



1800 Pembrook Drive, Suite 170 
Orlando, Florida 32810 

407-843-5406 
www.mcdirmitdavis.com 

 

the trusted partner 
 

 
 
July 29, 2025 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Sweetwater Creek Community Development District 
219 East Livingston Street 
Orlando, FL 32801 
 
The following represents our understanding of the services we will provide Sweetwater Creek Community Development District 
(the “District”). 
 
You have requested that we audit the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the District, as of September 30, 2025, and for the year then ended and the related notes, which collectively comprise the District’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of 
this audit engagement by means of this letter.  
 
The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards, will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, 
they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that certain required supplementary information (RSI), such as management’s 
discussion and analysis (MD&A), be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part 
of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As part of our engagement, we will 
apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAS). These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management 
regarding their methods of measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI is 
required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 
 

1.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
 
Auditor Responsibilities 
We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal 
control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.



Sweetwater Creek Community Development District July 29, 2025 
Engagement Letter Page 2 of 6 
 
 

 

 Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk that 
some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance 
with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other periods. 
 
Compliance with Laws and Regulations  
As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will 
not express such an opinion. 
 
Management Responsibilities  
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

a. For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America; 

b. For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error, fraudulent financial reporting, 
misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental regulations, grant agreements, or contractual 
agreements;  

c. To provide us with: 
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 

of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and other matters; 
ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit;  
iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity and others from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit 

evidence. 
d. For including the auditor’s report in any document containing basic financial statements that indicates that such basic 

financial statements have been audited by us; 
e. For identifying and ensuring that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities;  
f. For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in the management 

representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement 
and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
basic financial statements as a whole; and 

g. For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work; 
h. For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding assets; 
i. For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving management, employees with significant 

role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect on the financials; and 
j. For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided. 

 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your responsibility: (a) for the 
preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria; (b) to provide us with the appropriate 
written representations regarding supplementary information; (c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any 
document that contains the supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary 
information; and (d) to present the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the supplementary 
information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to make the audited basic financial statements readily 
available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary 
information and our report thereon. The accompanying supplementary information will be presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information, which is the responsibility of management, 
will be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our auditor’s report will provide an opinion on the 
supplementary information in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in 
connection with the audit.



Sweetwater Creek Community Development District July 29, 2025 
Engagement Letter Page 3 of 6 
 
 

 

As part of the audit, we will assist preparation of your financial statements and related notes. You will be required to acknowledge 
in the written representation letter our assistance with the preparation of the financial statements and that you have accepted 
responsibility for them. 
 
Nonattest Services 
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, such as drafting the financial statements, and proposing adjusting or correcting 
journal entries to be reviewed and approved by management, we will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the 
District. However, we will provide advice and recommendations to assist management of the District in performing its 
responsibilities. 
 
The District’s management is responsible for (a) making all management decisions and performing all management functions; (b) 
assigning a competent individual to oversee the services; (c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed; (d) evaluating 
and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and (e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, 
including monitoring ongoing activities. 
 
Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 

 We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards, including Government Auditing 
Standards. 

 The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional judgment, reserves 
the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed as making management decisions or 
assuming management responsibilities, including determining account coding and approving journal entries.  

 
Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and experience of 
management, should we participate in any form of the preparation of the basic financial statements and related schedules or 
disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 
 
Reporting 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District’s basic financial statements. Our report will be addressed 
to the governing body of the District. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content 
based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our 
opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, withdraw from the 
engagement. If our opinions on the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in 
advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may decline 
to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement.  
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report describing the scope 
of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and 
contracts, including the results of that testing. However, providing an opinion on internal control and compliance will not be an 
objective of the audit and, therefore, no such opinion will be expressed. 
 
We also will issue a written report on the District’s compliance with the requirements of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes upon 
completion of our audit. 
 
Other 
We understand that your employees will prepare all confirmations we request and will locate any documents or support for any 
other transactions we select for testing. 
 
If you intend to publish or otherwise reproduce the basic financial statements and make reference to our firm, you agree to provide 
us with printers’ proofs or masters for our review and approval before printing. You also agree to provide us with a copy of the final 
reproduced material for our approval before it is distributed.  
 
Regarding the electronic dissemination of audited financial statements, including financial statements published electronically on 
your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute information and, therefore, we are not required 
to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the 
original document.  



Sweetwater Creek Community Development District July 29, 2025 
Engagement Letter Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 

Professional standards prohibit us from being the sole host and/or the sole storage for your financial and non-financial data. As 
such, it is your responsibility to maintain your original data and records and we cannot be responsible to maintain such original 
information. By signing this engagement letter, you affirm that you have all the data and records required to make your books and 
records complete.  
 
Provisions of Engagement Administration, Timing and Fees 
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and you should be aware 
that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted communications. 
 
We expect to begin our audit in April 2026 and the audit reports and all corresponding reports will be issued no later than June 30, 
2026. 
 
Tamara Campbell is the engagement partner for the audit services specified in this letter. Her responsibilities include supervising 
McDirmit Davis, LLC’s services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing another qualified firm 
representative to sign the audit report. 
 
Our fee for these services described in this letter will be $4,000 for the year ended September 30, 2025, inclusive of all costs and 
out-of-pocket expenses, unless the scope of the engagement is changed; the assistance that the District has agreed to furnish is 
not provided, or unexpected conditions are encountered, in which case we will discuss the situation with you before proceeding.  
 
Fees for fiscal years 2026-2029 are as follows: 
 

Year Ended  Audit Fee 
September 30, 2026  $4,000 
September 30, 2027  $4,300 
September 30, 2028  $4,300 
September 30, 2029  $4,600 

 
Our invoices for fees shall be rendered upon completion of the work, shall provide sufficient detail to demonstrate that fees charged 
are solely for the specified services as actually rendered and shall demonstrate compliance with the terms of this agreement. 
 
This Agreement provides for the agreement period of one (1) year, unless terminated earlier in accordance with this Agreement. 
This agreement may be renewed for four additional years subject to the mutual agreement by both parties to the terms and fees 
for such renewal. The District agrees that Auditor may terminate this Agreement with or without cause by providing sixty (60) days’ 
written notice of termination to the District; provided, however, that the District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure 
any failure under this Agreement. Auditor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately of any circumstances 
we encounter that could significantly affect this initial fee estimate. with cause. Auditor further agrees that the District may terminate 
this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to Auditor. Upon any termination of this Agreement, 
Auditor shall be entitled to payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination date, subject to whatever 
claims or off-sets the District may have against Auditor. 
 
Whenever possible, we will attempt to use the District’s personnel to assist in the preparation of schedules and analyses of 
accounts. This effort could substantially reduce our time requirements and facilitate the timely conclusion of the audit. Further, we 
will be available during the year to consult with you on financial management and accounting matters of a routine nature. 
 
During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your operations. We will 
bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally or in writing.  
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become aware during the period 
from the date of the auditor’s report to the date the financial statements are issued. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least five years from the date of our report. 



Sweetwater Creek Community Development District July 29, 2025 
Engagement Letter Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 

Public Records 
Auditor understands and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be 
public records, and. Accordingly, Auditor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, 
including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Auditor acknowledges that the designated public records custodian 
for the District is Government Management Services (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other requirements and to the extent 
applicable by law, Auditor shall 1) Keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request 
by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that 
public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except 
as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if Auditor does not transfer the records to 
the Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no cost, all public 
records in Auditor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records 
pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred by Auditor, Auditor shall destroy any duplicate public records 
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be 
provided to the District, in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 
 

IF THE AUDITOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE AUDITOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE PUBLIC RECORDS CUSTODIAN AT 
407-841-5524, RECORDREQUEST@GMSCFL.COM, OR AT 219 EAST LIVINGSTON ST., 
ORLANDO, FL 32801. 
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Supervisors the following significant findings from 
the audit: 
 

 Our view about the qualitative aspects of the entity’s significant accounting practices; 
 Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
 Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
 Disagreements with management, if any; 
 Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant 

to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting process; 
 Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 

procedures; 
 Representations we requested from management; 
 Management’s consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
 Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, with 

management. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of McDirmit Davis, LLC and constitutes confidential information. 
However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to a federal or state agency providing direct or 
indirect funding, or the U.S. Government Accountability Office for purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, 
or to carry out oversight responsibilities, pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, 
access to such audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of McDirmit Davis, LLC’s personnel. Furthermore, upon 
request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend, or 
decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we have attached a copy of our latest external peer review 
report of our firm for your consideration and files.  



Sweetwater Creek Community Development District July 29, 2025 
Engagement Letter Page 6 of 6 
 
 

 

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the arrangements 
for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective responsibilities. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be your financial statement auditors and look forward to working with you and your staff. 
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
McDirmit Davis, LLC 
Orlando, FL 
*************************************************************** 
RESPONSE: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth our understanding. 
Sweetwater Creek Community Development District 
Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of Sweetwater Creek Community Development District by:  
 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Title:__________________________________________________________ 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 13 



RESOLUTION 2025-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE SWEETWATER CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING THE ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Creek Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of 
special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the District is required by Section 189.015, Florida Statutes, to file quarterly, semi-
annually, or annually a schedule (including date, time, and location) of its regular meetings with local 
governing authorities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, further, in accordance with the above-referenced statute, the District shall also publish 
quarterly, semi-annually, or annually the District’s regular meeting schedule in a newspaper of general 
paid circulation in the county in which the District is located. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board desires to adopt the Fiscal Year 2025-2026 meeting schedule attached as 
Exhibit A. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
1.  ADOPTING ANNUAL MEETING SCHEDULE.  The Fiscal Year 2025-2026 annual meeting 

schedule attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein as Exhibit A is hereby approved and shall 
be published in accordance with the requirements of Florida law and also provided to applicable governing 
authorities. 

 
2.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of August, 2025.  

 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  

SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Chairperson/Vice Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 

 
 
Comp. Exhibit A: Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Annual Meeting Schedule  



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING DATES 
SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FISCAL YEAR 2025-2026 
 

The Board of Supervisors of the Sweetwater Creek Community Development District will hold their regular 
meetings for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 at 1865 North Loop Parkway, St. Augustine, FL 32095, at 4:00 p.m. 
unless otherwise indicated as follows: 
 
Thursday, October 2nd, 2025 
Thursday, November 6, 2025 
Thursday, December 4, 2025 
Thursday, January 8, 2026 (New Year is Thursday, January 1) 
Thursday, February 5, 2026 
Thursday, March 5, 2026 (Preliminary Budget Discussion) 
Thursday, April 2, 2026 (Final Budget Discussion) 
Thursday, May 7, 2026 (Proposed Budget Approval) 
Thursday, June 4, 2026 
Thursday, July 2, 2026 
Thursday, August 6, 2026 (Public Hearing-Budget Adoption) 
Thursday, September 3, 2026 
 
The meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provision of Florida 
Law for Community Development Districts. The meetings may be continued to a date, time, and place to 
be specified on the record at the meeting.  A copy of the agenda for these meetings may be obtained from 
250 International Parkway, Suite 208, Lake Mary, Florida 32746 or by calling (321) 263-0132. 
 
There may be occasions when one or more Supervisors or staff will participate by telephone. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations at this 
meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the District Office at (321) 263-0132 
at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida 
Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) / 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), for aid in contacting the 
District Office.   
 
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting with respect to any matter considered 
at the meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the 
person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony 
and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 
 
District Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 14 



RESOLUTION 2025-15 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF SWEETWATER CREEK 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING A PUBLIC DEPOSITORY 
FOR FUNDS OF THE DISTRICT; AUTHORIZING CERTAIN OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER ANY AND ALL FINANCIAL REPORTS REQUIRED BY 
RULE, STATUTE, LAW, ORDINANCE OR REGULATION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Creek Community Development District (hereinafter the “District”) is a 

local unit of special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, 
being situated entirely within St. Johns County, Florida; and 
   

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District (“Board”) is statutorily authorized to select a 
depository as defined in Section 280.02, Florida Statutes, which meets all the requirements of Chapter 
280, Florida Statutes, and has been designated by the State Chief Financial Officer as a qualified public 
depository; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District has had no District revenues and has therefore made no public deposits nor 

has the District heretofore delegated to a Treasurer, or to any other person, responsibility for handling 
public deposits; and  

 
WHEREAS, the District, prior to making any public deposit, is required to furnish to the Chief 

Financial Officer its official name, address, federal employer identification number, and the name of the 
person or persons responsible for establishing accounts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board, having organized by appointing a Treasurer and other officers, is now in a 

position to select a public depository and to comply with the requirements for public depositors; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Board wishes to designate a public depository for District funds.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1. Bank United is hereby designated as the public depository for funds of the 

District.  
 

SECTION 2. In accordance with Section 280.17(2), Florida Statutes, the District’s Secretary is 
hereby directed to take the following steps: 

 
A. Ensure that the name of the District is on the account or certificate or other form provided 

to the District by the qualified public depository in a manner sufficient to identify that the 
account is a Florida public deposit. 

B. Execute the form prescribed by the Chief Financial Officer for identification of each public 
deposit account and obtain acknowledgement of receipt on the form from the qualified 
public depository at the time of opening the account. 



C. Maintain the current public deposit identification and acknowledgement form as a 
valuable record. 

SECTION 3. The District’s Treasurer, upon assuming responsibility for handling the funds of 
the District, is directed to furnish the Chief Financial Officer annually, not later than November 30 of each 
year, the information required in accordance with Section 280.17(6), Florida Statutes, and otherwise take 
the necessary steps to ensure that all other requirements of Section 280.17, Florida Statutes, have been 
met. 

 
SECTION 4. The District Manager, Treasurer, and/or Assistant Treasurer are hereby 

authorized on behalf of the District to execute and deliver any and all other financial reports required by 
any other rule, statute, law, ordinance or regulation. 

  
SECTION 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 7th day of August 2025. 
 

 
ATTEST:  SWEETWATER CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 15 



Sweetwater Creek 
Residential & Commercial Community Development 

Districts 
 
 
 

NEW SUPERVISOR INFORMATION SHEET 
Please return completed forms to  

Vesta District Services 
Records Management 

250 International Parkway, Suite 208 
Lake Mary, FL 32746 

District Manager: Howard McGaffney 
 

 
1) Name: ___________________________________________________ 
 
 
2) Address: __________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
3) County of Residence ________________________________________ 
 
 
4) Phone or Cell ______________________________________________ 
 
 
5) Email Address _____________________________________________ 
 
 
6) Waive OR Accept Compensation of Statutorily Allowed $200 per Meeting 
_____________________________.  If you have elected to receive compensation 
then please forward the attached payroll forms along with the New Supervisor 
Information Sheet. 
 
 
Payroll Information 
 
1) Date of Birth: _________________________ 
2) Drivers License Number: _____________________________________ 


	1. CL Regular
	2. Draft Agenda Pg. 1
	3. EXHIBIT 01
	4. EXHIBIT 01 - Published Notice

	5. EXHIBIT 02
	6. EXHIBIT 02 - PHs - Approved Proposed FY26 Budget

	7. EXHIBIT 03
	8. EXHIBIT 03 - PHs - Res. 2025-12 - Adopting FY23 Budget

	9. EXHIBIT 04
	10. EXHIBIT 04 - PHs - Res. 2025-13 - Annual Assessments

	11. EXHIBIT 05
	12. EXHIBIT 05 - Consent Agenda - July Mins.

	13. EXHIBIT 06
	14. EXHIBIT 06 - Consent Agenda - June Financials

	15. EXHIBIT 07
	16. EXHIBIT 07 - Consent Agenda - June & July O&M
	JUN25 CK REG
	SWC JUL25 CK REG
	Blank Page


	17. EXHIBIT 08
	18. EXHIBIT 08 - Consent Agenda - Requisition #168

	19. EXHIBIT 09
	2. Draft Agenda Pg. 2
	21. EXHIBIT 10
	22. EXHIBIT 10 - Staff Reports - July Operations Report

	23. EXHIBIT 11
	24. EXHIBIT 11 - Business Items - Vesta Agreement
	EXHIBIT XX - Business Items - Vesta Agreement
	Cost Plus Info (1)
	Sweetwater Vesta Fee Summary Comparison 7.30.25


	25. EXHIBIT 12
	26. EXHIBIT 12 - Business Items - McDirmit Davis Engagement Letter

	27. EXHIBIT 13
	28. EXHIBIT 13 - Business Items - Res. 2025-14 - Approving FY 2025-2026 Meeting Schedule

	29. EXHIBIT 14
	30. EXHIBIT 14 - Business Items - Res. 2025-15 - Designating Public Depository

	31. EXHIBIT 15
	32. EXHIBIT 15 - Business Items - New Supervisor Information Sheet


	rta: 


